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HAGUE, SAHADY & CO., P.C.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
126 President Avenue

Fall River, MA D2720

TEL [508) 6753-7889

FAX [R08) 675-78359

Independent Auditors’ Report

Honorable Mavor and Members
of the City Council

City of Mew Bedford

MNew Bedlord, Massachusetts

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
the discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Ciry
of New Bedford, Massachusetts, as of and for the year eaded June 30, 2004, which collectively comprise the City’s
hasic financial statements as Hsted in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the City
of New Bedford's management, Qur responsibility is to express opimions on these financial statements based on our
audir,

We conducted our audit in aceordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Unites States of Amenca and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit m¢ludes examimng, on
a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, a3 well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the reports of the other auditors provide a
reasonable basis for gur opinicns

In our apinion, based on our audil and the reports of the other auditors, the financial siatements referred to above
present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the diseretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information
of the City of New Bedford, Massachusets, as of June 20, 2004, and the respective changes in financial position and
cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in con formity with accounting prnciples generally
accepted i the Unites States of America

The management’s discussion and analvsis on pages 3 through 12, the schedule of revenues, expenditures and changes
in fund balances - budgetary basis on pages 35 through 60 and the schedule of funding progress and employers’
contributions en pages 61 through 63 are not a required pan of the basie financial statements, but are supplementary
information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the Umied States of America. We have applied
certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of
measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did noraudit the information
and express no opinion on it




CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS

Chur audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the
City of New Bedford’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, supplementary statements and schedules,
and statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements. The supplementary statements and schedules have been subjected to the duditing procedures applied in
the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion are fairly stated in all material respects in relation 1o the
basic financial statemenis taken as a whole, The intreductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on
themn.

In accordance with Government Aunditing Srandards, we have also issued a separate report dated February 18, 20035
on our consideration of the City’s imternal control over financial reporting and on our tests of it compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. That report is an integral padt of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standardys and should be read in conjunction with this report in considering the
results of our awdit,

Crur audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a whole,
The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as
required by LLS. Oftice of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of State, Local Govemnments, and Non-
Profit Orgamizations, and 15 not required parts of the basic financial statements of the Ciry of MNew Bedford,
Massachusetts. Such information has been subjected 10 the audit procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and. 1 our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements
taken as a whole.

—
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February |8, 2003



CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)

Year Ended June 30, 2004

The management of the City of New Bedford, Massachusetts (City), offers readers of the Ciry's financial statements
this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004, We
encourage readers to consider the information presented hiere in conjunction with additional information found within
the body of the audit.

FINANCIAL Highlighes:

® The assets of the City exceeded liabilities at the close of the fiscal yvear by 5117.419.316 (net assets).
OF this amount, $(5,658 %04) (unresricted net assets)is-a deficit balance.

L The City's total net assets increased by $13,402 944

L] As ol the close of the current fiscal vear, the City's governmental funds reported combined ending
fund balances of 38,501 842),

e At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance for the general fund was $16,704,1595
{7.2 percent) of 1otal general fund expenditures,

® The City's wotal long term debt decreased by $7,050,144 duning the current fiscal year. The key
Factor in this decrease is the normal annual debt service requirements.

OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City's basic financial statements. The City’s
basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund
financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements, This report also contains other supplementary
information in addition to the basic financial statements. themselves,

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed 1o provide readers
with a broad overview of the City's finances. in a manner similar 1o 2 private-sector business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City's assets and liabilities, with the difference between
the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether
the financial pesttion of the City is improving or deteriorating.

Led
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) (Continuad)

Year Ended Jupe 30, 2004

The statenent of activities presents information showing how the City’s net assets changed during the most recent
fiscal vear. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs,
regardiess of the riming of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reporied in this statement for some
items that will only result in cash fows in future fiscal periods, (i.e., uncollected taxes and eamed but unused vacation
leave).

The government-wide financial statements of the Cuty are divided into two categories:

& Covernmental activities - Governmental activities of the City such as general government, public
works, public safety, education, community and economic development, culure and recreation are
reported here. Property laxes, state aid, local fees and charges finance most of these activities,

o Component units — The governmeni-wide financial statements not only include the governmental
and business-type activities (known as the primary government} but also legally separate entities,
There are five legally scparate component unit entities ineluded in this report, which are the Greater
New Bedford Regional Refuse Management District, the Harbor Development Corporation, Mew
Directions, the New Bedford Redevelopment Authority and The Mew Bedford Contributory
Betirement System.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 14 and 15 of this report,

Fund financial statements, A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources
that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Ciry, like other state and local governments, uses
fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate comphance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of
the City can be divided into three categories: governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds for the
City consist of the pension trust fund, the private purpose trust funds and the agency funds. The proprietary funds for
the City is the internal service fund or medical claims trust fund. All other acuvities of the City are included in the
governmental funds.

Governmental funds: Governmental funds are used to account for cssentially the same functions reported as
govermmental acrivities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial
statements, governmeni fund financial statements focus on rear-term inflows and oudflovws of spendable resources, as
well as on balances af spendabie resowrces available at the end of the fiscal vear. Such information may be useful in
the evaluaton of a government’s near term financing requirements,

b — R (R — |



CITY OF NEVW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) (Continued)
Year Ended Tune 30, 2004

Because the focus of governmental funds is narmower than thatof the government-wide financial statements, it is useful
to compare the information presented for governmental funds with simitar information presented for governmenral
gotivities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term
impact of the government's near term financing decisions, Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the
povernmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to
facilitate the comparison between governmental funds and governmental acrivities.

The City maintaing many governmental funds. Information 15 presented separately in the governmental fund balance
sheet and in the governmental fund siatement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances for the general
fund, wastewater fund and stabilization fund which are considered major funds. Data from all of the other
governmental funds, which are considered non-major funds, are comhined into 3 single agerepated presentation,
Individual fund data for these nonmajor povernmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements, which
arc nol required but are supplementary information,

The City adopts an annual budget for its general and 1ts wastewater funds, A budgetary comparison statement has been
provided to demonsirate compliance with those budgets,

The governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 16 through |7 of this report.

Proprictary funds: The City mantains one different type of proprietary fund.  [arerng! service funds are an
gecounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among varous function, The City uses internal
services funds to account for the purchasing of supplics, medical and life nsurance., Because these services
pradominantly benefit governmental rather than business-type functions, they have been included within governmenial
activities in the govermment-wide financial statements, The accrual basis of accounting is used for the proprictary
funds.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in more
detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide information for the enterprise fund consisting of the zoo
operations as well as the intermal service fund which (s considered a major funds,

The proprietary furnd Ninancial statements can be found on pages 20 through 23 of this report.

Fiduciary funds: Fiduciary funds are used to account for résources held for the benefit of partes outside the
government. The City is the trustee, or fiduciany, for its employees’ pension plan. [t is also responsible for other assets
that because of a trust arrangément can be used only for the trust beneficiaries and the agency fund. The City is
responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are used for their intended purposes. All of the City's
fiduciary activities are reported in a separate statement of fiduciary net assets and a statement of changes in fiduciary
net assets. These activities are excluded from the Ciy's governmental-wide financial statements because the City
cannol use these assets to Nnance 118 operations, The accounting used for fiduciary funds is the accrual basis of
accounting.

The fiduciary funds financial statements can be found on pages 24 through 25 of this report,

TIF



CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) (Continued)

Year Ended June 30, 2004

Naotes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided
it the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 26 through 54 of
this report.

Other information: In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain required
supplementary information concemning all legally adopled budgets. The City appropriates an annual appropriation budget for the general
and wastewater funds. Budgetary comparison schedules are presented to demonstrate compliance with the budget on pages 59 through
.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

As noted earhier, net assels may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position. In the case of the City, assels
exceeded liabilities by §117 million as of June 30, 2004 and | |3 million as of June 30, 2003,

The largest partion of the City’s net assets reflects 11s investment in capital assets {e.g., land and improvements; buildings and
improvements, vehicles, fumiture and equipment and construction in progress), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that
is still putstanding. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to its residents; consequently, these assets are por available for
future spending, Although the City's investment in its capital assets is reported net of related deba, it should be noted that the resources
needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to hiquidate these
liabilities.

The City's financial position s the product of several financial ransactions including the net results of activities, the acguisition and
payment of debt, the acquisition and disposal of capital assets, and the depreciation of capital assets,

Net Assets for the period ending June 30, 2004 and June 30, 2003 (Government-wide level)

Gaovernmental Activities Tatal
2004 2003 W04 2003
Current and other assets & 120236587 SI08.377.741 % 120,236,587 5 108,377,741
Capital assets 321.897.934 310,077,640 321897934 310,077,640
Total Assets  $442.134.521 $ 418455381 $ 442,134,521 $ 418,455 381
Current liabilitics 5 60,563,161 § 56035004 5 60,563,161 L 56055044
Long-term liabilites 264,152 044 258,324,003 264152044 258324 005
Taral Liabilities §324.715.205 § 315379009 $324.715.205 g 314.379.009
Net Assals:
Investment in capital
assets (net of debt) S 11E:538,632 % 62157884 £111,538,632 £ 92,157,886
Restricted [1,539.508 8,754,139 11,539,508 8,754,139
Unreserved fund balance { 5.658.904} 1164347 { 5.658.904} 3. 164347
Toral Net Assers 117419316 g 104076372 5117419316 5 104,076,372

TIF e |



CITY OF NEY BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MDB&A) (Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2004
An additional portion of the City’s net assets $1 1,539,588 represents resources that are subject 1o external restrictions on how they may

be used, The remaining balance of unrestricted net assets $(5,658 904)1s a deficit and may not be used 10 meet the City's ongoing
obligations to citizens and crediors,

The strength of the City 15 dependent upon the willingness of the citizenry to pay their bills when they are due, and the diligence of the
Tax Collector to ensure that everyone complies with such dealings. As of June 30, 2004 and June 30, 2003 cash and mvestments
consisted of $55,359.123 and $42 875597 respectively.

At the end of fiscal years 2004 and 2003, the City is not able to report positive balances in all three categories of net assets for its
sovernmenial activities,

The City's ner assets increased during the current fiscal vear, ducin primarily to change in accruals from one year to the next

Governmental activities, Governmental activities increased the City's net assers by 13,402,944 for fiscal year ended June 30, 2004
Key elements of this increase are documented on the following page;

Changes in Net Assets for the period ending June 30, 2004 and June 30, 2003 (Government-wide level)

Covernmental Activities Total
2004 ____ 2003 2004 2003
Revenues: S
Program revenues:
Charges for service § 39,567,685 5 32829137 £ 39,587,685 S 32829137
Operating grants &
contributions 60,750,394 30584 094 6,750,394 S05R4, 094
Capital grants &
contributions 11,278,056 3,299,793 [ 1,278,056 13299793
CGeneral revenues:
Property taxes £3 763 438 61,777,400 &5.783 438 61777400
Motor vehicle exoise 5,081,080 6,154 081 5.951.080 6,134,081
Tax foreclosure &
other 2.610.715 2869234 2:610.715 2,869,234
[ntergovernmental 121437635 [19544,578 121,437,635 | 19,544 578
Earnings on investments |, 317,865 1,376,235 [317,863 |.376.235
Other 3.3621.556 6,215 837 3,362,556 6215837
Tatal revenues 312060424 297,630,389 312069424 297.630.389

11T



CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS

Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) (Continued)

Year Ended June 30, 2004

Governmental Activities Total
2004 2003 2004 2003

Expenses:

General governmen 17,456,808 9306362 17,456,808 9,306,362
Public protection 44,954 467 41,496,661 44,954 487 41,496,661
Public works 29,612,467 26,361 366 20612467 26,361,366
Health & human sery 5,065,130 4,973,266 5,065,130 4,573,266
Educanon 178,965,475 170,598 386 | 78,965,475 170,398,886
Community and

Economic Deve 4,741,293 11,379,080 4,741,293 11,379,080

Culture and recreation 4,243 183 5,167,583 4,243,183 3,167,383
State and County chgs 1513412 [.614,076 1513412 614,076
Liebt service (1nterest) 1,366,036 T.641.724 11,566,026 7,691,724
Debt administrative fees 83,833 83833

Fotal expenses 299:431.480 279,469,242 209431 420 279.469 242
Increase {decrease) m net

assets before transfers 12,673,944 15,161,147 12,673,944 15,161,147
Transfers {765,000 165.000)
Increase (decrease) in

net assets 13,402,944 15,161,147 13,402 944 13,161,147
Met assets - beginning L04.016372 88915225 104016372 88915235
Met assels - ending S 117419316 $ 104076372 5117419316 S104.076.372

The summary ahove 15 not comparative due to the restatements summarized on Mote 13 Restatement in the basic financial statements.

The majonty of general revenues are tax collections from the City's taxpayers. This amount represented 33% of the towal general
revenues of 8200 million.. The operating grants are also a significant source of revenue for the City, The total operating zrants for fiscal
year ended June 30, 2004 amounted to 360,730,394 of which 340,740,738 were received for education.

The maost significant expense of the City 15 educanon which represented 60% of total expenses, followed by public safery at 13%.



CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Management’s Discussion and Analvsis (MD&A) (Continued)

Year Ended June 340, 2004

Expenses and Program Revenues — Governmental Activities

Expenses and Program Revenue - Governmental Activities

200,000,000
150,000,000 H Expenses
100,000,000 WRevenue
B Expenses
50,000,000 B Revenue
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MDEA) (Continued)

Year Ended June 30. 2004

General Revenues by Source -

Governmental Activities
Earnings on Other

investments- | 2%  PFopery taxes H Property taxes
19, - — 33%

B Motor vehicle
excise

O Taxliens, fines &
other

Mtor vehice [ Intergovernmental

B Eamings on

investments
Tax liens, fines &
o B Cther

1%

Intergovernmental
60%

Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds
As noted carlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements,

Governmental finds. The focus of the City's governmenal funds is o provide information on the near-term inflows, outflows. and
balanees of spendable resources, Such information 1s uselul in assessing the City's financing requirements, In particular, wnreserved fund
balance may serve as a useful measure of 8 government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal vear.

The City's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $( 85011 842 ) Tor fiscal year ended June 30, 2004 and $(458,121)
for fiscal year ended June 30, 2003, This decrease in fiscal vear ended June 30, 2004, wotaling $8.043,721, constitules monies spent on
capital projects for which there are bonds authorized but unissued at the fiscal vear end,

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of the current fiscal year, total fund balance of the veneral fund of
$16,704. 195 was unreserved. As a measure of the general fund’s liguidity, it may be useful to compare both unreserved fund balances and
total fund balances o total fund expenditures. Total fund balance and unreserved fund balance represent approximately 7% oflotal general
fund expenditures.

CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS



CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Management's [Hscussion and Analysis (MD&A) (Continued)

Year Ended June 30, 2004

The stabilization fund had 2 fund Balance of $3,194,493 at the end of fiscal vear 2004 and = balance of 34,328,195 at the end of fiscal
year 2003, During the year the net transfers out were $426,268 for fiscal year ended June 30, 2003, The fund had eamings from
investments of $(6,513 and $274.929 respectively and expenditures of $10,919 and 512,101 respectively for fiscal year ended June 20,
2004 and 2003,

Proprietary funds. The City's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the governmenl-wide financial statements,
but in more detail. The Internal Service Fund is categorized as a governmental activity because it services primarily governmental-type
funds,

Budgetary Highlights

General Find, The major difference berween the oniginal budget and the final budget are briefly summarized as follows:

Revenues and Orher Sources:

Tatal budgeted revenues were mereased by $1 1,781,133, over the eriginal budget.

® Property tax revenue was increased by 57,611,130
® Intergovernmental (state) revenue was increased by 51,866,352
] Transfers from other funds were appropeiated in the amount of §1,245,113

Expenditures and Other Uses:
Total budgeted appropriations were increased by 811,781,133 over the original budget

Included additional appropriation for intergovernmental expenditures in the amount of 31,574,471
Included additional appropriation for culture and recreation in the amount of $1,292 450

Included additional appropriation for health insurance and pension in the amount of 34,994,300
Included various other additional appropriations totaling 33,919,912

The major differences between the acrual results of the general fund and the final amended budget are as follows;

L] The City's costs for education were 102,180,873 resulting in a favorable variance of 52,204,828
e The City's departmental charges for services category recognized as revenue $610,228 mare that what was budgeted.
L] The Ciry actually collected 8484885 more in intergovernmental revenues than was budgeted,

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. The City's investment m eapital assets for its governmental and business type activities as of June 30, 2004 amounted
16 321,897,934 (net ol accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings and system, improvements,
machinery and equipment, construction in progress and fann animals. The total increase in the City’s investment in capital assets for
the current year was 3.8 percent.

ITF
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Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included construction in progress for both the Normandin Middle School, the

CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS

Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) (Continued)

Year Ended June 30, 2004

ateport taxiway rehabilitation and the milroad depot project.

MNet of Accumulated Depreciation
June 20, 2004

2004 2003

Covernmental Governmental

_Activities Activities
[L.and % 679 554 5 670 804
Construchon in progress 59,124,362 83,452,660
Infrastructure in progress F4.080 184 20,650,659
Infrastructure 137,416,001 132,527,937
Buildings and Improvemenis 08,493,555 59,692,037
Machinery and Equipment 7,805,564 8,761,297
Office Equipment and Furniture | 875,529 2,391,390
Library Books and Textbooks 2500473 159 144
Automobiles [,132 455 T18.354
Amimals 41,617 44 257
8§ 321897934 5 310.077.640

Addinonal information on the City’s capital assets can be found on note 10 on pages 39 through 40 of this report,

Long-term debt. The City had towal bonded debt outstanding of 3206 677,219 as of June 30, 2004 and 213,727 367 as of June 30, 2003,
The full faith and credit of the City backs this entire amount. Of this amount $7,630,000 relates to the businass type activity,

During the current year the City's total debt decreased by $7.050, 148, This resulted because the reaular debt pavments were timely paid.
51,761,314 of new debt was issued during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004 however, in fiscal year ended June 30, 2003,

Addittonal information on the City's long-lerm debt can be found in note 10 on pages 46 through 50 of this report,
Feconomic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates

The unemployment rate for the City is currently 9.53% which is an increase from the rate of 8.6% a vear ago. This compares wafuverably
1o the state’s average unemployment rate of 3.8% and the national average rate of 6,3% percent.

The oceupancy rate of the City's central business district has increased to approximately 75 percent in 2004 compared to approximately
60 percent i 1999, Residenuial vacancy rates continue to decrease, Al present, vacant apartments are in scare supply. During fiscal
vear 2004, single famuily housing started to increase from prior years, During 2003, 138 family homes were added to the tax rolls with
maore new homes under construction. Property value increased for the third consecutive year, growing to 4,334, 708 400 in fiscal 2003
compared 1o 2,904,738 800 in fiscal 2001. This trend has continued into fiscal vear 2003,



CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) (Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2004

In 2003, there were 15 building sales in the downtown area. The new owners have plans o create over [30 residential units and renovate
over 63,000 square feet of commercial space within the next bwo years.

State Local Aid to the City has increased by a significant percentage for several years, primarily to fund education. In fact, Local aid
now comprises approximately 60% of the City's general fund revenues. Although this funding plays a lead role in financing the City's
budget it also leaves the City vulnerable to tax cuts and/or economic downtums at the State level,

Mew Bedford has experienced a substantial increase i business activity. During fiscal year 2003, the City approved & Tax Increment
Financing projects representing over 529 million of new mvestments. In fiscal year 2004, the City approved & Tax Increment Financing
projects representing over $8.7 million of new investment in the City, adding 25 new jobs and renovating six abandoned buildings. In
fiscal year 2005, 6 projects are proposed committing $19.9 million of mvestments and adding |41 new jobs

Fhere are currently 30 companies and 36-plants in the New Bedford business park, wotaling 2.3 million square feetof space. Three new
roads arc expected to be built within the next 18 months which will make available 10 new lots for sale. Titleist just completed a major
plant cxpansion which increased its workforce from 700 to 1,300, AFC Cable is in construction $14.0 million expansion, retaining 230
johs and creating 35 new jobs and Butler Architecture is in construction of a $1.4 mullion renovation creating 15 new jobs. Other park
companics currently planning plant expansion include. Johnston & Johnson, NATCO, Zapp USA and Ahead

Requests for Information
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of New Bedford, Massachusetts’ finances for all those with

an interest in the government's finances. Questions conceming any of the information provided in this repert or request additional
financial information should be addressed to the Chief Financial Officer Treasurer, 133 Williams Street, New Bedford, Massachusetts.
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Statement Of Net Assets

June 30, 2004

I — 1

Codmformng
Primary Gowacnmant Linits
Grealer Maw Badfard Tatal
Gaovarremanial Regicnal Rofuse Hon Majar Componant
Activitboa Tatatl Maragamant District Campesant Linits Units
ASSETS
Uamginicrod ¢ash and invasimania 4 a595 48 5 44591506 3 1.631.731 5 A ADETTD 5 B7ITEM
Rastncied cash and ivesiments 9,367,197 5T 19T 10,780,555 10.780,595
Accounts recesvnsle. et af allowance 6.260, 896 B PR, ESG BB Ras 6. 882 685427
Tamms ragewahle. el 0,144,452 20,844 453
Moles receivabie, ned 10.555.262 10,595 282
Heaiih pran conlnbuhons secanvable nat 342030 3H0.100
Accrepd inferes) 8,891 B89
D e pabar funds. T.041.806 7044 BOE
Oue rom gdhergovernments 15,199,385 15195 185 47 08% LEOF A48 1.8%5. 495
Intra-gally secaivabie 43T 231 A37.73 543,960 11,960
Recevagles from eetemal panies 10713 nena 11,152 11,152
Inwerdones and prepaid dxpenses 245,944 246518 a1 587 3302 54,106
CHber pEsets, Curran| Ealb] 23.198 1.833 1,833
Cihar assais, non-gumeni 1Al 4 185,411 148 567 V48 56T
Capdad assels
Liad 575 BG4 TG a98 3557 16G 1,714,085 8,571,272
Conslruchon in progress 50124282 58,124 162 E.Ba4 713 B.B44 118
Infiagifutiue in rogfess 14,580,734 14,050.154 7,009 651 7 509,651
Indragiruciune. nel 13T 41650 17,816 0t
Biaraing and improdemants, et 95.491.555 &3 453,555 172,085 21619 il rle
Piert and wharfs, nat =0 B9 350054
Cfhizn equepment ang furnaizna, el 1.875.52 1875525 3.762 5E,702 B4 534
Library bochs and lexibooes. nel 1,253 473 1,260,471
Auromoimias, ret 1102455 1,132,455 743,240 36.B16 TBOTI6
Machinery and eguipmant. et TALY D6 ek T 22325 22325
Animals, ne! 41,617 4! 617
Tolat capual asieds IIAST A% AN 1%, B9 198 .57 56D 22,260,758
Tolal Assels 5 aadas s 3 42 i3asn £ 25,950 803 5 12914 127 § 3B B64 730
LIABILITIES
Accounis payable and accnied eaflantes % 18,185 731 L1 18,388 731 1 145 945 5 1,366,241 L 1512154
Retainage gayabla B58,9E5 55E.585
Chud 20 SiRar Qoreamimenis 12,817 12817 4T85 1224 ECRr]
Irtraeniity payable 313960 313,960 437,221 437,231
Do 1o ibay dumos TES0.5T0 T.550,570
Fayabie 10 Bxiednal paras TE.000 TELAD Eat.487 £a1.487
Aoorued interest 3.682 083 1 BAZ AL 43475 AF 475
Degasits held 184384 GE6.B8T 251,061
Deterad revenug PLLA2 1 13082045 490635 490,833
Czhar hakuldios 5727492 sr2raz
m liabdilies
Partjon dué of payatls wihin ane year
Claims Dayatie 2540 050 Fhat b
Bonds angd nztes payatia 5086 TR FoEE T 545,000 22769 TEE TGS
Captal Inases aGd Ta1 AFa: T4
Campensaled abserces 3.870,703 3ava 0l 18524 TR.524
Pariedn dul oF Savable in mose 1han ong year
Acoried-dosure/pasl Slasure doniy 5,083,785 5,083,785
Bangs ard nates payatle 248 Ngagg 248.3%0.458 3,359,434 185356 3,984,880
Comgensaled aosences 15 302 651 14303661 166311 186,31
Capal Ipasag 537 835 517 QE5
Takal iatlibes 5 324715 205 5 324 715 205 5 G 1% RO3 5 3,604 363 §13135.09E8
MET ASSETS
negdled in Capnlal BEses et
retated daot & 111538532 5 v1%.535632 5 B T8 714 £ 51329680 %17 BEQET4
Rasencied fon
Dbt Serace 2678484 2H19484
Nan-expeadable Deguaesis 4 BTT.BES 4 B7T .S
Oibe purpases £.242°11% 4,242,249 5,839,142 5838142
Unrasircies | SESR G4 | 5,653,904 1,953,144 56 734 2048538
Tetal nel assess § U4 § 1T AIsME $ 16539000 $  GnTa § 35,768 744

The accamaaryng rales are an inlegral parl of shig slalemrend
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Acliwithan:
Govornmanlal:
Senersl goyeinrman
Pabihc salary
Fublic wivss
Hizalih ang Mman saraces
Eduraton
Conmunily ard ehonomic desalopmenil
Cullure and rocreabnn
Mynezipal Aapar
Hlale anm coundy chiarges
[hebt nerwce
Adeainsirative lBes
Ennggs] ang hsgal cnarges

Total goverhmental actanlies

TOTE ey G N
Componoani Units:
Girealed Mew Bediotd Regiong Reluse
Manageman Dising
Koo My component s
Eiglal Coempanimt nds

Tolal Tty of Maw Bedfoor

CITY OF REW BEDFORD, MASSACHLISETTS
Statement ol Actolies
Forihe Year Ended June 30, 2004

Program Hovenues

Bel (Expinds) Revenue and
Changas in Mol Assals

Frimary Goversmaont

Fuas, Finos, and Diparating Capilal
Charges for Granis and Granis and Gawnrnmental
Expanans Sarvicos Contribaaens Contrsbutions Activiting Tatal
L S ETEN 5712047 % MESTE 5 4 11,307 TaE) £ 11,357,788]
£55954 4T 4,505 595 4375578 | 25,6543, 293) | 355422931
2061 467 14578915 753350 S046352 (I TDIAELT) | 3701861
5,065,130 B.470.702 405,144 IEETIE JENETIE
178,965 475 3435340 af 740,718 2,374,563 | 132,244, 83%) | 132444831
R k| 14ns Fed 6,604,022 684,897 3,603,584 1403 488
4 743,783 435384 290,351 2,1265.0659 | 1.357.439) I 1387 435}
1,225,376 B60.047 ERELRTE] 2480847 TARn BT
1513812 i 1553812, | 1513418
AR | LEHCRED | E3.830]
11, 566,016 {11,566 036 L 1,566 O3E|
o0 431 4B 30 56T A5 60,750,394 11, 3TE D56 { 187835 345) (BT A3E 3%}
2% 4711 4B 19 567 GRS B0 750,364 LT28066 1 VAT B35 1ah) {187 835 3850
4 156,00 4 186,28
R ITOtTD L% 86 2304103 4,499,735
b R R 6 N2 58 2,234,333 1,459,735
§ 09357850 § dnrrogea % E!qﬂSd (TS 11T, 79 | 187 635345} {187,935 345
Clanisnl réwenues
Rewl eslate und persosal propamy, nel of resers fae poatemants BE M40 65, TE3 438
Malar veticle and olher gsciss azes 5501080 5,007,080
Dhsintaatioe - Sonool Aug o5 Ba5, 731 95 845,711
Chainbution - Loflery 20272783 2057278
Chsinbution - Addihonal g 7T16.255 ME25S
Crsinbution - Lirbin redeviescament 289,840 e R
Exematons - Veteran, ghind & supvivog Spouses 136,958 36958
Exempliaa « Edarly REERAET 115,858
Stite owned land 6,124 G2
Tiw fareslosuied 1,340,251 1,342,091
Panailies and inleges on lhees 1,007,460 1,067,561
Fines and forelures LRI R TRN0EY
Earnings on Invesimens 13N H6S 137868
Papmanti s hied &f lanes A04.0458 A04 045
Miscallaneaus 2952383 952333
Saecial ferm - gain {loss) o sele of capilal asseis
Trarslers
Takings 165 420 165.000
Crverlay reserve BO0 30 GO0 D0
Tooul general fveniue 20t FI6 28Y 201 F38 289
Chamge in rnel assets 13402544 124035844
Met BssatE-teqiniing, restated 104 016377 104 016,372
Mal pssets-eading AR L § T a19.36

The accompanying nabes are an egral past of e stalemient

Comparond Unirs

Groaler Mow Bediord Honmajor Total
Raglenal Refuse Componant Compongng
Regional Managerment Districl Units Units.
3 5 H
1.030.526 1,030,528
| e o L 1,020 2690
1,008 526 1, B, D65 10 EnT
1,030 525 | 1,020 36%| 10,257
1085 806 11,851 200657
26166 26,1646
e 4T 1HE. 747
14 572 e 415570
1,245 4548 (I 11 KA AZhERT
15 P07 L3 1063 415 75332907
3 16536000 5 9219744 § INTS0T4
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ASSETS

Cash and investments, unrestricled
Cash, rastricted
Recaivables, nel;
Real estate and personal property taxes
Tax liens and foreclosures
Motor vehicle and olher excise
Lserices
Accriyed interest
Departmental and other
Loans receivable
Special assessments
Dee from alher funds
Intra-gntity receivables
D from othar govermmenis
Inwventories

Total assets

CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS

Governmental Funds

Balance Sheet

June 30, 2004

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)

Liabilibes:
Warranis payable
Accounts payable and accrued sxpenses
Ratainage payable
Bonds payable
Due to other funds
Due to external parties
Intra-entity payables
Due to other governments
Other habilites
Deferred revenue

Total liabilities

Fund balances {deficits)
Reserved for:
Encumbrances
Debt Senvice
Men expendable bequesls
Oher specific purposes
Unreserved
Undesignated, reported in nonmajor;
Spacial revanue funds
Capital project funds
Fermanent funds

Total fund balances

Total habilibes-and fund balances

Honmajor Total
General Wastewatar Governmental Governmantal
Fund Fund Stahilization Funds Funds
3 17,440,948 g Tz $ . d.81,050 18233414 T 42182422
8,367,197 9367197
24681450 2,463,150
15,310,707 15,310,707
2. 365,506 2,365,596
673,187 1,556,782 2,225,969
8.851 8,804
3B 117 62,952 376,067 4,310,136
12,573,535 12,573,533
£330 205,279 211.609
B.699,606 1,538,749 3,445 213,386 B.455,186
392498 392, 406
136,954 15,062,427 15,199,385
246,918 246918
5 45856325 § 15048971 5 3194495 47714 642 3 114 814457
$ 3097022 kS 815831 3 F52.081 s 4,504,934
5,283,622 89,231 5.807.684 10980537
058,985 0858 985
50,680,000 50,680,000
125,820 8,392,455 1,177,480 7699874
78,000 78,000
313560 313,860
12617 12617
244 050 328742 572,792
19,583 636 1825014 25 6495 530 47,104 580
28,338 250 9132531 BH. 845 489 123,316,279
1.099,132 1,099,132
2,615,454 2619484
4 677,885 4677685
2714743 1,527 476 4. 243213
16,704,185 1,765,480 3,194,455 21,668,170
T.557.373 551373
54,161,062) {  54,161,052)
3,784 a7 3,704 047
20,518.070 5016 440 3,184,495 38,130 847) [ 8501842
$ 48856329 3 150484571 331944595 47 714,642 E 114,814 437

The accompanying notes are an infegral pard of this statemeant
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REWEMNUE

Real eslate and personal property taxes
Motor vehicle and olher exdise taxes
Tax foreclosures

Penaities and interest onlaxes
Licenses and permits

Fines and forfeitures
Investmenlincome
Intergovernmental

Charges for services

Special assessments

Payments in lieu of faxes
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

General governmant

Fublic safety

Education

Fublic warks

Cammunity and economic development

Health and human services

Municipal airport

Cullure and recreation

Pansion benefits

Health-and athar msurance

State and county charges

Debt serice:
Admirstrative fees
Principal payments
Interest and fiscal charges

Taotal expendituras

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expendifures

DTHER FINANCING SCURCES (USES)
Bond proceeds
Transfer from tadlings
Transfer fram overlay reserve
Transfers in
Transfers out
Tofal other finanoing sources and uses
Mal change In fund bafances

Fund balances-beginning, restated

Fund balances-ending

CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Statement of Revenues, Expendilures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds

Far the Year Ended June 30, 2004

Nonmajor Total
General Wastowater Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Stabilization Funds Funds
% 66,118,307 k1 3 5 : 66,118,307
5,870,604 15,865 5,886,540
1,144,771 1,144,771
1,087,553 1,087,563
1.204 457 1,284 45T
176,721 4,140 1BL 861
239325 h,244 [ B.513) 1.079 549 1,317,605
138,024 853 6,938,739 45,411,088 194,375,580
19,745,250 14,384,443 1,645,200 35,775,853
3983 3983
404,045 404,049
A0Z 416 30,705 4440015 5573138
234 513,379 22,055,141 { 6,513} 52,506 75T 309,52 754
15,816,567 458,937 16,275,504
35,370,244 3, 7R7 BES 38,158 203
116,995,459 10.919 39,087,896 156,004 274
9782 312 9,411,506 9,718,543 28,622 381
8,036,797 8,036,797
2.036,575 858,380 29048925
391,853 3,252 684 3,544,537
2,551,683 1,174,583 3.726,268
13,257,370 13,257,370
26,708,058 26,708,053
1513412 1.513.412
226915 226915
a.080,683 4630775 100,000 8811458
4,500,196 7034 534 22 306 11,566,036
233,023 504 21,003 730 10,919 86,507 965 320545 118
1,489,875 1.055.401 { 17, 432) { 13911208} {11,383 364)
1,751,289 1,751,289
165,000 165,000
a0, 000 600,000
755 661 4,445,068 31150 5512250
[ 132 240 {4445 088) [ 426 268) |f SHB.ETS) { 5512 250)
1,388,441 [ 426.268) 1,554,116 2,516,284
2873316 1,055,401 { 443.700) [ 12,357.002) { 8857075
17,639,754 4,881,039 3,638,185 { 257731755) 355,233
5 20513070 $ 591E44D 3 3/194.485 $ 38133847 3 8.501.842)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of he statemant
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet
Total Fund Balances to the Statement of Net Assets

T

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004

Total governmental fund balances 5 8,501,842
Record allowance for doubtful accounts that are financial resources,
for the sovernmental funds, { 1.837.486)
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not {inancial resources
and, therefore, are not reported in the funds 321,897,934
(hher long-1erm assels are not available to pay for current-period
expenditures and, therelore, are deferred inthe funds, 34,022,381
Internal service funds are used by management o account for health
insurance and workers' compensation activities.
The assets and habihities of the internal service funds are included in
the governmental actvites in the Statement of Net Assers. 2,394 621
In the statement of activites, interest is acerued on outstanding long-term debt,
whereas in governmental funds interest is not reported untl due. { 3.682083)

Long-term lizbilities are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore,
are not reported 1n the governmental funds

Bonds and notes payable { 206,677.219)

Compensated absences (19, 174.364)
Capital leases {1007 626)
Net assets of governmental activities § 117419316

The accompanying notes are'an integral part of this statement
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds 3 BEEV.OTH
To record allowance for doubtful accounts that are resources for governmental funds i 67,843)

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the Statement
of Activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and
reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlaws
exceeded depreciation in the current period. 11,820,294

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial resources
are fully deferred in the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
Balances, Therefore, the recognition of revenue for various types of accounts
receivable (ie., real estate and personal property, motor vehicle excise, erc.) differ
between the two statements. This amount represents the net change in deferred
FEvenue. 2831783

The tssuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds and leases) provides current financial
resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term
debt consumes the financial resources of governmental funds, Neither transaction,
however, has any effect on net assets. Also, governmental funds report the effect
of 1ssuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued,
whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the Statement of Activities.
This amount is the net effect of these differences in the treatment of long-term
debt and related items, 6,777,506

[n the statement of activities, interest is accrued on outstanding long-term debt,
whereas in governmental funds interest is not reported until due. 153,107

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities, such as compensated
absences, do oot require current financial resources and, therefore, are not
reported as expenditures in the governmenal funds. 612,442

[nternal service funds are used by management to account for health insurance
and workers' compensation activities,

The net activity of internal service funds is reported with Governmental Activities 142,730
Change in net assets of governmental activities 5 13402944

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement



ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and shon-term investments
D from other funds

Deposits with others

Total current assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilives:
Warrants payable
Accounts payable
Dhae to other funds
Claims incurred but not teported

Total current liahilitics

Taotal habilites
MNET ASSETS

Unrestricted

Total net agses

CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS

Statement of Net Assets
Proprictary Funds

Tune 30, 2004

Governmental Activities -

Internal Service Funds

5 3809504
477

F620.300

7.430.68]

g 7,830 681
5% 2492918
34z

|, 741

2.541.059

3036060

5 50360 06
5 2,394 621
5 2304621

The accompanying notes an integral part of this statement
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2004

OPERATING REVENLUES

Interfund services provided
Miscellaneous

Total operating revenues.
OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and benefits
Services and supplics
Health and other insurance
Total operating expénses
Operating moome (loss)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
[nvestment eamings
Totel nonoperaling revenus (Expenses)
Income {loss) before transfers
TRANSFERS
Transfers In
Total Transfers
Chapge in net assers
Tomal met assets-beginning, restared

Total net assets-ending

Governmental Activities -

Internal Service Funds

5 30,450,529
FAE A6

31,329,597

28,895
291 648
30 866,584

31,187,127

142,470

260

260

142.730

142,730

2:251 391

8 2,394 62|

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement




CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS

Statement of Cash Flows

Proprictary Funds

For the Year Ended JTune 30, 2004

Cash flows from operating activities;

Cash received from emploves and emplover contributions and
governmental units

Paymuents to supplicrs and employees

Payments to parficipants and employees

Met.cash provided (used) by operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Transfers in (our)

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activitics
Cash Mows from investing activities:

Imterest and dividends

Met.cash used by investing activities

Met increase in cash and cash equivalents
Balances-beginning of the vear

Balances-end of the year

Displayed as:
Cash and short-term myvestments

Governmental Activities -

Internal Service Funds

3 33677413
297, 854)
[ 30,800,695

2,578 Rai

{ 10.862)

{ 101,862

260

260

2568 258

1.241.246

5 3,804,504

b 3,800, 504

% 3,800 504

The secompanying noles are an integral part of this statement
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2004

CGovernmental Activities -
Internal Service Funds

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net
cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Operpting meone {loss) b 142,470

Adjustments o reconcile operating income 1o net
cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation
Change i assets and habilites:

(Increase ) decrease receivables, net 2,347 816
[Increase) decrease prepaid expenses | 207,100)
Increase (decrease) warmanis pavable 238,160
Increase (decresse) accounts pavable
amd gecrued expenses { 59211
Ingrease (decrease) incurred bul not reported 200,725
Met cash provided {used) by operating activitics 5 2,578,860

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds and Similar Component Units

June 34, 2004

Pension Truost

Fund (As of Private Purpose

December 31, 20013) Trust Funds Apency Total
Assels
Cash and shor-term investments £ 4470737 % 4891 & 2344007 5 6819837
Investments 63537622 10,103 163,547,725
Receivables, net of allowance or uncollectibles:
Employvee 87,902 87902
Interest and dividends £22 352 822 382
Other 1,430 588 34,943 1,474,531
Dhue from external partics - component unit 691,487 691 487
Duee from external paries - primary government TRO00 T8, 000
Dee from other governments 49737 749,757
Fotal assets § 171207968 & 15096 § 3.148537 §174.271,601
Liabilities
Warrants payable 5 3 5 226,469 -] 226,469
Accounts pavable 3450800 2.0 3667 3484678
Payable to external parties - component unit Li;152 11,152
Payable 1o external parties - primary govemmen? 200,950 201,950
Deposits held 2113 486 2677755 2,900, 785
Fetal labilitics 3674 287 2210 3 148,537 6,825,034
Mel Assets
Held in trust for pension benetite
and other purposes § 167533681 8 12886 % 5 167.546,567

R LY

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Met Assets

Fiduciary Funds and Similar Compenent Units

Additions:
Contribulions:
Employer
Emplovee
Tuotal contributions
Met investment income;
Dividends and interest
MNet appreciation in fur value
af investments
Total investment income
Less invesunentexpenss

Met investment Income

Intergovernmental

Toal Additions
Deductions:
Retirement benetits
Administration
Library
Transfers, reimbursements and refunds
Total Deductions
Change in Mer Assers

Net Assets at Beginning of Year

Met Aszsets at End of Year

June 30, 2004

Pension Trust
Fund (As of
December 31, 2003)

5 14,572,226
0. 866519

—a U TR

21438745

4,006,270
27,680,433

2676712

1. 020,202

31,656,420

1413542

— I T RUGY T

54,500,107

25,005,508
314,749

2473149

27,793,406

26,715,701

140,817,080

—_— N L L

i 167,533,681

Private Purpose
Trust Funds Total

5 $ 14,572,224
{806,519

———— e e

21,438,745

T e s e

|26l 4,947 5440
742 27641175
2,003 32678715

1,020,292

2,003 31,658,423
4135942
2,003 S4500.018

25,005,508
2.492 317241

2,473,149

2T, 795,808

2,492 .

{ 484) 26,715,212
e 13375 140,831,355
3 12856 § 167,546,567

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Motes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2004
NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accompanying basic financial statements of the City of New Bedford (the City) are presented in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as prescribed by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board {GASB).

A, Reporting Entity

These financial statements present the City (the primary government) and its component units, the Grearer New
Bedford Regional Refuse Management Dhstrict, the Harbor Development Commission, New Directions, the
Redevelopment Authonty and the New Bedford Contributory Retirement System, A3 defined by GASBS No. 14,
component unils are legally separate entines that are included in the City's reponting entity because of the significance
of their operating or financial relationships with the City,

CGreater New Bedford Regional Refuse Management Districe 15 an intermunicipal landfill benefitting the City of New
Bedford and the adjacent Town of Danmouth. The Refuse Distnict s governed by a six member committee, three of
whom are appointed by the Ciry and three of whom shall be appomited by the Town of Dartmouth.  Although legally
separate, the Greater New Bedford Regional Refuse Management District is reported on the government-wide financial
statement as @ component unit.  Separate financizl statements for the Greater New Bedford Regional Refuse
Management District are not included in this financial statement presentation. These financial statements could he
obtained be contacting the Greater New Bedford Regional Refuse Management District,

The Harbor Dievelopment Commussion was estabhished under the Acts of 1957 as a Public Instrumentality to develop
and market both the New Bedford Harbor as well as the waterfront properties. The Harbor Development Commission
manages the local manna, harbors and waterways on behalf of the City, The Commission s made up of seven
members, of which the mayor is the chairperson and six other appointed members.  Although legally separate, the
Harbaor Development Commission is reported on the government-wide financial statements as a non-major component
unit, Separate fnancial siatements for the Harbor Development Commission are not included in this financial
statement presentation. These financial statements could be obtained by conlacting the Harbor Development
Commission.

New [irections was established pursuant o the Job Training Partmership Actof 1982, 29 U.S.C. Sec. 1501 et seq. to
provide employment rraining programs 1o eligible individuals, Although legally separate, New Directions is reported
on the government-wide financial statements as a non-major component unil, Separate financial statements for New
Dnrections are not included in this financial statement presentation. These financial statements could be obtained by
contacting MNew Direcuons.

The Redevelopment Authority was orgamized under the provisions of Massachusetts General Laws 12/B. The purposc
of the Authority 15 to engage in urban renewal projects and other related work., The Redevelopment Authonty is
reported on the government-wide financial statements as a non-major component unit, Separate financial statements
for the Redevelopment Authority are not included in this financial statement presentation. These Anancial statements
could be ohtained by contacting the Redevelopment Authority

The Contributory Retirement System (CRS) 15 a defined benefit contributory retirement plan covering employees of
the Ciry and certain other entivgs. The Cuy Auditor 1s an ex-officio member of the System’s Board and the City is the
largest employer in the System. The Retirement System accounts for resources available 1o be used for payment of
pension benefits. The Retirement System is reported on the Fiduciary Fund fmancial statements.
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
MNotes to Financial Statements (Continued)

June 30, 2004

NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
B. Basic Financial Statements - Government-Vide Statements

The City's basic financial statements include both government-wide (reporting the City as a whole) and fund financial
statements (reporting the City's major funds). Both the government-wide and fund financial statements categorize
primary activities as either governmental or business-type.  The City's public safety, parks, library and recreation,
public works wastewater, water, and general administrative services are classified as governmental activities. The City
does not have any business-type activites.

In the government-wide Statement of Net Assets, the governmental column is presented on a consolidated basis by
column, and are reported on a full accrual, economic resource basis, which recognizes all long-term assets and
receivables as well as long-term debt and obligatiens. The City's net assets are reported in three parts — invested m
capital assets, net of related debt; restricted net assets; and unrestricted net assets, The City first utilizes restneted
resources to [nance qualifying activities

I'he government-wide Statement of Activities reports both the gross and net cost of each of the City's functions (police,
fire, public works, etc.). The functions are also supported by general government revenues (property, sales and use
taxes, certain intergovernmental revenues, fines, permits and charges, ete.) The Statement of Activities reduces gross
expenses [including depreciation) by related program revenues, operating and capital grants, Program revenues must
be direetly associated with function (police, public works, community and economic development, ete.). Operating
grants include operating-specific and discretionary (either operating or capital) grants while the capital grants column
reflecis capital-specific grants.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary tunds. However,
fiduciary funds are not included in government-wide statements since these assets are held for the benefit of private
parties and pension participants, and cannot be used to satisfy obligations of the primary government. Major individual
governmental and enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

The netcosts { by function) are normally covered by general revenue (property, sales taxes, intergovernmental revenues,
Imlerest meome, e}

The government-wide focus is more on the sustainability of the City as an entity and the change in the City's net assets
resulting from the current vear's activities.

(. Basic Financial Statements - Fund Financial Statements
The financial transactions of the City are reported in individual funds in the fund financial statements. Each fund is
accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprises its assets, labihues, reserves, fund

equity, revenues and expenditures/expenses. The vanous funds are reported by general classification within the
financial statements,
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Motes to Financial Statements (Continued)
June 30, 2004
NOTE 1: Summary of Siznificant Accounting Policies (Continued)
C. Basic Financial Statements - Fund Financial Statements (Continued)
The following funds are used by the Ciny:
1. Governmental Funds
The focus of the governmental funds’ measurement {in the fund statements) is upon determinaton of the financial
position and changes in financial position (sources, uses and balances of financial resources) rather than upon net

income. The following 15 a deseription of the governmental funds of the City;

a. General fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to account for all financial
resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

b. Special revenue funds are used 10 account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are
legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes

C. Capital projects funds are used to account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or
construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by business-type/proprietary funds).

d. Permanent funds contain resources that are legally restricted to the extent that only eamnings may
be used for purposes that support the reporting government’s programs.

2. Proprietary Funds
The focus of proprictary fund measurement 15 upon determination of operating income, changes in net assets, financial

position, and cash flows. The accounting principles generally accepted in the United States applicable are those similar
to husinesses in the private sector. The following 15 a description of the proprietary funds of the Ciny:

a Internal serviee funds are used to account for the financing of goods or services provided by an
activify to other departments; funds or component umits of the City on a cost-reimbursement basis.

3, Fiduciary Funds
Fiduciary Funds are used o report assets held in a trustee or agency capacity for others and therefore are not available

to support City programs. The reporting focus s on net assets and changes in net assets and are reported using
accounting principles similar to proprietary funds,
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Mates to Financial Statements (Continued)
June 30, 2004
NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
. Basic Financial Statements — Fund Financial Statements (Continued)

The emphasis in fund financial statements is on the major funds in either the governmental or business-type activities
categories. Nonmajor funds by category are summanized into a single column. GASB No. 34 sets forth minimum
criteria (percentage of assets, labilities, revenues or expenditures/expenses of either fund calegory af the governmental
and enterprise combined) for the determination of major funds,

The City™s mtemnal service fund 1s presented in the proprietary fund financial statements. Beeause the principal users
of the internal services are the Citv's povernmental activities, the financial statement of the internal service fund
consolidated into the governmental column when presented in the government-wide financial statements,

The City's fiduciary funds are presented m the Niduciary fund financial statements by type (pension, private purpose
and apency), Since by definition these assets are being held for the benefit of a third party (other local governments,
private partics, pension participants, etc.) and cannot be used to address activities or obligations of the government,
these funds are not incorporated into the govemment-wide statements,

D. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting refers to the point at which revenues or expenditures/expenses are recognized in the accounts and
reported in the financial statements, It relates to the timing of the measurements made regardless of the measurement
focus applied.

1. Accerual

The governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements and the proprictary and fiduciary fund
financial statements are presented on the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when earned and
expenses are recognized when incorred

Under this hasis of accounting and measurement focus, the City applies (a) all GASB pronouncements and (b) FASB
Statements and Interpretations, APB Opinions, and Accounting Research Bulleting issued on or before Movember 30,
1989, except those that conflict with a GASB pronouncement.

2. Modified Acerwal

The governmental fund financial statements are presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the
maodified accrual basis of dccounting, revenues are recorded when susceptible to acerual, i, both measurable and
avatlable. “Available” means collectible within the current period or within 80 days after year end. Expenditures are
generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting when the related lisbility is incurred. The

exceplion to this general rule is that principal and interest on general obligation long-term debt, if any, is recognized
when due.

E. Financial Statement Amounts
I, Cush and Cash Equivaients

The City has defined cash and cash equivalents to include cash on hand, demand deposits and highly liquid
mvestments with a maturity of three months or less when purchased
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Motes to Financial Statements (Comtinued)

June 30, 2004

NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
E. Financial Statement Amounts {Continued)
2. Invesnmments

Investments, including deferred compensation and pension funds, are stated at fair value, Fair values are based on
guotations from national securities exchange. FPurchases and sales of investments are recorded on the tade date,
Transactions unsettled as of year-end are recorded as prepaid for securiues purchased and as receivahbles for securities
sold.

3. Property Taxes

Real and personal property taxes are based on values levied (assessed) and licned as of each January | in accordance
with Massachusetts General Laws, By law, all taxable property in the Commonwealth must be assessed at 100% of
Fair cash value., Onee levied, these taxes are recorded as receivables, net of estimated uncollectibles, In the government
fund financial statements, property tax revenues have been recorded using the modified accrual basis of accounting,
Under the modified basis real estate, personal property and other excise taxes levied are recorded as receivables in the
fiscal year of the levy and as revenue when collected within the current year or expected to be collected within 60 days
after the end of the current vear. Taxes not collected within this time period are classified as deferred revenue.
Dreferred revenues are those whers asset recognition has been met for which revenue entenia have not been met, The
government-wide financial siatements recognize property tax revenue when faxes are levied net of estimated
abatements and exemptions.

4. fmventory

The cost of supplies and other inventoniable items as recorded 5 an expenditure at the tme of purchase {purchase
method). No significant inventory balances were on hand at June 30, 2004.

5. Cupituf Assers

Capital assets, which melude property, plant, equipment and infrastruciure assets (e.g., roads, bridges, curbs, gutlers,
streets, sidewalks, and drainage systems) are reported in the applicable governmental activities column in the
povernment-wide financial statements, Capital assets purchased or acquired with an aggregated original cost of
£10.000 or more are reported at historical cost or estimated historical cost, Contributed assets are reported at fair
market value as of the date recerved. Additions, improvements and other capital outlays that sigmficantly extend the
useful hife of an asset are capitalized. Net interest costs related to construction prejects are capitalized during the
related period. Such costs were not considered material during fiscal 2004, Donated capital assets are valued at their
estimated fan value ar the fime recorded.

The cost of normal mantenance and repairs that do not add 1o the value of the asset or matenially extend assets” lives
are not included in fixed assets.
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
MWotes 1o Financial Statements (Continued)

June 30, 2004

NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
E. Financial Statement Amounts {(Continued)
5. Capiral Assets (Continued)

Depreciation on all assets 15 provided on the straight-ling basis over the following estimated useful lives:

Building 20-50 vears
Water and sewer svslem 30-30 vears
Machinery and equipment 5-10 years
Improvements 10-20 years
Other infrastructure Lk-50 years

GASE No. 34 required the City to report and depreciate pew infrastructure assets effective June 30, 2002,
Infrastructure assets include roads, bridges, underaround pipe (other than related to utihues), traffic signals, ete. These
infrastructure assels are likely to be the largest asset class of the City. Neither their historical cost nor related
depreciation has historically been reported in the financial statements. The retroactive reporting of infrastructure i3
subject to an extended implementation penod and s first effective for fiscal vears ending in 2006, The City has elected
to implement the general provisions of GASB No. 34 in the current year and hope to implement the retroactive
infrastmicture provistons in the fiscal vear ending June 30, 2003,

6. Compensated Absences

Emplovees are gramted sick and vacation leave in varying amounts. Upon retirement, termination or death, eligible
employees are compensated for unused sick and vacation leave {subject o certain limitations) at specific payment rates
established by controls, resulations or policy. The cost of compensated absences for employees 15 recorded as earnad
in the government-wide fund financial statemeants. A liability for these amounts is reported in the governmental funds
only if 1t has matured.

7. Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments far fund expenditures are
recorded in order 1o reserve portions of applicable appropriations, is employed in governmental funds,

8. Reserved-Unreserved Fund Balance/Rerained Earnings

The reserved portions of fund balance consist principally of the portion which is not appropriable for expenditures,
which is legally segregated for a specific fulure use.

Certain wastewater reserve funds are adjusted on the last business day of each calendar month, The Trustee 1s required
to apply amounts available in the revenue fund to the following reserve funds in the following arder:
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Motes to Financial Statements {Continued)

June 30, 2004

NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

E. Financial Statement Amounts {Continued)

8. Rexerved-Unreserved Fund Bulunce/Retained Earnings (Continued)
Operating Account of the Operating Fund - Monthly deposit to equal the amount of Operating
Expenses in the next succeeding month, as provided in the Wastewater Division's annual operating

budget;

Working Capital Account of the Operating Fund - Depositas needed to equal the Operating Fund
Deficn, ifany;

Debt Service Fund - Manthly deposits on account of debt service on City Revenue Bonds;

Debt Service Reserve Fund - Deposit as needed to meet the Debt Service Reserve Fund
requircment;

Operating Reserve Fund - Deposit as needed to meet the Operating Reserve Fund requirement;

Renewal and Replacement Reserve Fund - Deposit as needed to meer the Renewal and
Replacement Reserve Fund requirement

Insurance Reserve Fund - Deposit as needed o meet the [nsurance Reserve Fund requirement, if
any;

Renewal and Replacement Accounts - Deposit as determined by the Clty to fund ongoing repair
and maintenance of the Wastewater System; and

Debt Service Assistance Account in the Debt Service Fund - Deposit as determined by the City
in anticipation of the receipt of Debt Service Assistance from the Commonwealth or other sources.

Unreserved Fund Equity - The unreserved fund balances for governmental funds represent the amount available for
budgeting future operations, Unreserved retained eamings for proprietary funds represent the net assets available an
future operations or distribution,

9, Long-Term Liabilities
For long-term liabilities. only that portion. which 15 matured, is reported as a fund liability of 4 governmental fund,
All long-termy liabilities are reported in government-wide financial statement of net assets. Long-term liabilities

expected to be linanced from discretely presented component unit operations are accounted for in those component
units financial statements,
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Motes to Financial Statements {Continued)

June 30, 2004

NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
E. Financial Statement Amounts (Continued)
0, Claims and Judgments

The Cuy s uninsured with respect to risks includiog, but not limated to, property damages, personal injury and
workers' compensaton, In the fund financial statements, expenditures for claims and judgments are recorded on the
basis of whether the liability has matured in the current period, Expenditures for workers® compensation are recorded
when paid. Settlements relating o condemnation proceedimgs are reported when the hability 15 estimable. In the
governmeni-wide inancial statements the estimated liabihiry forall elaims and judgments is recorded as a liability and
&5 an expense.

11, Revenues

Substantially all povernmental fund revenues are accrued, Property taxes are hilled and collected within the same
period in which the taxes are levied. As required by GASB No. 33 when recording grant revenues, the provider
recognizes liabilities and expenses and the recipient recognizes receivables and revenue with the applicable eligibility
requirements, ncluding time requirements, are met. Resources transmitted before the eligibility requirements are met
are reported as advances by the provider and deferred revenue by the recipient,

12, Expenditures
Expenditures are recognized when the related fund lizbility is incurred.
13, Interfund Activity

[nterfund activity is reported as either loans, services provided, reimbursements or transfers. Loans are reported as
interfund receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject to elimination upon consolidation, Services provided,
deemed to be at market or near market rates, are treated as revenues and expendiures/expenses. Reimbursements are
when one fund mours a cost, charges the appropnate benefitiing fund and reduces 1ts relaied cost as a reimbursement.
All other interfund ransactons are treated as ransfers. Transfers between governmental or proprietary funds are
neited as part of the reconcibation to the government-wide financial statements.

14, Lise of Estimuates

The preparation of basic financial statements m conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and habilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. Acwal results could differ from those estimates.



CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
MNotes to Financial Statements {Continued)

June 30, 2004

NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

F. Operating Revenues and Expenses

Operating revenues and cxpenses for proprictary funds are those that result from providing services and producing and
delivering poods and/or services. It also includes all revenues and expenses not refated to capital and related financing,
moncapital finanding, or investing activities,

NOTE 2: Compliance and Accountabiliry

Budget Requirements, Accounting and Reporting

Requirements for all tunds:

A

Annual budgets are adopted for all City funds. Under state law, the Mavor submits an annual budget to Council for
consideration and approval no later than July 15, Such budget is based on expected expenditures by program within
a fund and estimated resources by source for all funds.

By Charter the Mavor must submit an annual appropriate ordinance to City Council, This ordinance builds upon
the tax budget of the previous July and is updated for any estimate revisions as well as year-end encumbrances and
may include any additional information requested by Council. Council may subsequently amend such ordinance.
Amendments to the appropriation ordmance during 2004 were approved by the City Council as provided by the
Charter,

For day-to-day management control, expendiwres plus encumbrances may not exceed budget at the expenditure-type
{i.e., personal services, other operations and maintenance, etc.) level of each cost center {activity within a program
within a fund). The Mayor may transfer unencumbered appropriations within programs within funds,

Appropriation control (City Council appropriate budget) is by program (i.e., safety, leisure, health, etc.) within a
fund. City Council may, by ordinance. transfer amounts among programs within and between funds. Budgetary
comparison schedules are presented in the Supplemental Secuon as Reguired Supplemental Information. The
budpetary basis is the modified accrual basis of accounting with encumbrances included as actual,
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

June 30, 2004

NOTE 2: Compliance and Accountability (Continued)

Interfund Transactions

The interfund activity presented below is for the fund statement level only,

Due from Due to Other Financing
Other Funds  Other Funds Sources
Major Governmental Funds
General Fund S 6,583,338 S 129929 b 755,081
Wastewater Funds | .538 749 6,392 453 4,443 068
S1abilization Funds 3.445
Non-Major Governmental Funds
Capital Projects 77093 [, 1434620 83,720
Community Development Funds 5800 [194]
Special Revenue Funds [30,393 312,390 226,379
Permanent Funds 141,499 1,202
Proprietarv Funds
Internal Serviee Funds &77 1,741
Fiduciary Funds
Agency 7659487 213,101
Component Lnits
Harbor Development Commission 325,112 701222
Redevelopment Authority 367.496
Totals B 9435304 § 9435394 5 3512250

Other Financing
Uses

5 132,240

4,445 (68

426,268

225896

250,000

5  5.513.250
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS

MNotes w Financial Statements (Continued)

June 30, 2004

NOTE 2: Compliance and Accountability (Continued)

For the govermment-wide fnancial starements, all interfund transactions were eliminated except for those with

component units and fiduciary funds.

The City utilizes the interfund loan accounts as a short term vehicle to expedite the payment of vouchers from a

consolidate vendor checking account.

The transfers between funds are to fund operations for the zoo; to fund matching revenues related to federal grants;
to fund and utilize funding for operations in the Stabilizanon fund and to fund various other immaterial deficits in
Special Revenue and Community Development funds,

Reserved:
Encumbrances
Nonexpendable bequests
Petty cash
Renewal and replacement

Debl service

Presignated:
Overlay deficit

Dresignated for appropriation deficits

Covernmental Funds

General Trust
Fund Wastewater Fund
5 1,099,132 5 8
4,677 485
1250
1,527 476
2619484
1, 100382 4,146 960 4.677 883
600,000
2113493

2.713.493

S 3813875

3 4.146.960

£ 4677 8ES
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Motes to Financial Statements {Continued)
June 30, 2004
NOTE 3: Deposits and Investments
Deposits are in various financial institutions and are carried al cost,

The primary government’s carryving amounts of deposits was 345,197 956 and the bank balance was 356,746,937, Of
the bank balance $23,33 1,762 was covered by Federal Depaository or Depositors Insurance Funds or by collateral held
by the City's agent in the City's name. $-0- of those deposits are collateralized with securities held by the pledging
financial institution's trust department or agent in the Citv's name. The rémaining balance of 531413, 175 was
uninsured or collateralized with securities held by the pledaing financial institutions must depariment or agent but not
in the City's nume

The Contributory Retirement System's carrying amount of deposits was 54,470,737 and the bank balance was
$3,587.590, Of that bank balance 54 316,608 was coverced by Federal Depository or collateral held by the System or
its agent in the System'’s name. $190.420 of the bank balance is collateralized with securities held by the pledging
financial nstitution's st department or agent i the System's name.  The remaming balance of 81,080,162 was
uninsured or uncollateralized.

The Harbor Development Commission's carrving amounl of deposits was $774,323 and the bank balance was $790,307.
O that bank balance $609 306 was covered by Federal Depository or Depositors Insurance Funds or collateral held
by the Commission or its agent in the System's name. The remaining balance of S181L001 was uninsured or
uncollateralized. The total carrving value does not include cash on hand of 8700

The New Directions Fund's canying amount of deposits was 5166050 and the bank balance was $131,042. OF that
bank balance $ 100,000 was covered by Federal Depository or collateral held by the Fund's or its agent in the System's
name: The remaining balance of $3 1,042 was uninsured or uncollateralized, The rotal carrying value does not include
petty cash of $2492

The Greater New Badford Repional Refuse Management District's carrying amount of deposis was 53,577,603 and
the bank balance was 3,883,590, Of that bank balance $339 230 was covered by Federal Depository or collateral held
by the dismict's or its agent in the District’s name, OF that bank balance 5-0- was covered by Federal Depository or
collateral held by the [Hstrict or its agent in the District's name. $3,324.340 of the bank balance is collateralized with
securities held by the pledging financizl instinution's trust department or agent in the District's name. The remaining
bitlance of 50 was uninsured and uncollateralized. The total carrving value does not include cash on hand of 5200,

The Redevelopment Authority’s carmying amount of deposits was $159,205 and the bank balance was 5161,892. Of
that bank balance $ 161,892 was covered by the Federal Depository or collateral held by the authonity or its agentin
the Authonty's name. The total carrving value does not include cash on hand of 5200,

The City cateporizes investmients according to the level of tisk assumed by the Ciry. Catepory | includes invesunents
that are insured, registered or held by the Cinds agent in the City's name.  Category 2 includes uninsured and
unregistered investments held by the counterpanty's trust department oragent in the City's name. Category 3 includes
uninsured and unregistered investmenis held by the counterparty, its trust department or 15 agent, but not in the City's
name.

For financial stalement purposes, the City records its investiments in conformity with GASB-31 utilizing the market
value as of the last reported bid price on the last day of the business year,
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
MNotes o Financial Statements (Continued)
June 30, 2004
NOTE 3: Deposits and Investments (Continued)

Primary Government,

Category
1 2 3
Ciovernmient securities g 5 1,776,586 &
Stacks 0,373,563
Bonds 338,840
Fixed income securitics 3.752.067
Money market 424
Certificate of deposit 43,800
s $ 12520370 §
Component Units (Fiduciary Fund):
Contributory Retirement System
Category
1 2 3
Stocks b £ 19621728 %
Bonds TO39E 118
Fixed income securities 52140311
Real estate %2R3.835
Mutual funds 11,656,777
Oieher 1436853
b 163537622 %
Component Units: B
Greater New Bedford Regional Refuse District
Category
| 2 3
LU.S. Treasury/agency securities b 3 2332887 %
Bonds 4,122,326
Certificate of Deposit 2,379,330
£ £ 2834523 %

Note 4 Property Tax

Real estate and personal property taxes are based on values assessed as of each January 1. Taxes due and unpaid after
the respective dates are subject to interest and penalues. The City has the night to begin the lien process on property
on which taxes have not been paid after one vear following the due date and subsequently foreclose on such property.

Real estate, personal property and other excise tax levies are recorded as receivables and revenue in the fiscal vear of

the levy, Also, any amounts collected within 60 days after year-end are considered revenue, Taxes collected in
advance is considered deferred revenue,
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS

MNates to Financial Statements (Continued)

NOTE 3; Capital Assets and Depreciation

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2004 was as follows:

Governmental Activities:

Mot Being Depreciated.

Land
Copstruction in progress
Infrastructure in progress

Subtotal
her Capital Assets:

Infrastructure

Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Animals

Office equipment and furniture
Lilrary books and textbooks
Automobiles

Subtotal
Accumulated Depreciation:

Infrastructure
Buldmgs and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Animals
Otfice equipment and furnirure
Library books and rextbooks
Automobiles

Subtotal

MNet other capital asseis

Net capital assers

June 30, 2004

Beginning Ending

Balance(*]  _ Increases Decreases Balance
5 679,894 & B 5 679,804
83,452,666 17,542,143 { 41,870447) 59,124 362
20,650,659 | 606,705 { 8.177.180) 14 080184
104,783,219 149,148 848 { 50.047.627) 73884440
167 466,457 £.405,503 175,871,960
115,571,826 41,951,994 157.523,.820
30,741,533 2,183,548 32925081
52623 627 53,250
10,843,318 1,052,133 11,805451
5,382 836 679,273 6,062,109
4,737,219 064,634 5,701,853
334.795812 35237712 394.033.524
34,938,520 3507439 358,455,959
53879 784 3,150476 59,030,265
2198023 3,140,981 25:121.217
8,306 3,267 L1.633
8,451,928 | 567,994 |0,019922
4,273 687 587,949 4811636
4018863 5501533 4,569,308
126,501,391 12,518,639 142020030
205,294 471 42.719.073 248013494

§ 310,077,640

§ 61867921

${50.047.637) § 321897034

{*} The beginning balance has been restated, Refer to the restatement note for an explanation,
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
MNotes to Financial Statements (Continued)

June 30, 2004

NOTE 5: Capital Assets and Depreciation {Continued}

Drepreciation was charged to functions as follows:

Giovernmental activities;

Creneral Government

Public Safety

Public Works

Health and Human Services

Education

Community and Economic Development

Culture and Recreation

Total Governmental Activities Depreciation Expense

b ]

b 165,337

1,243,184

3565760

299050

6,021,358

4,763

619,187

12.518.639
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Motes to Financial Statements {Continued)

June 30,2004

NOTE 6: Pensions and Other Post Employment Benefits

The City of New Bedford contributes to the City of New Bedford's Contributory Employees' Retirement System, which
is a single-employer public employee retirement system (PERS), as established under Chapter 32 of the General Laws
of the Commonwealth of Massachusetrs,

Effective January |, 1996, the Contnbutory Retirement System of the City of New Bedford adopted Governmental
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 25 ("GASB-25"); "Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit Pension Plans
and Note Disclosures for Defined Contribution Plans." GASB-25 is intended to enhance the understandability and
usefulness of pension information included in the financial reports of state and local governmental pension plans,

Eftective July |, 1998, Chapter 17 of the Acts of 1997 (COLA Legislation) was adopted, The result of the adaption
of Chapter 17 is to increase the retirement allowance pension or annuity by the percentage as determined by the
Commissioner of Social Security or 3%, whichever is less. The maximum pension benefit on which a COLA may be
granted 5 $12,000. All retrees, disahled retirees and beneficiaries that have been recetving benefit payments for at
least one year as of July Ist are eligible for the adjustment,

AlLCOLA's granted 1o members prior to July [, 1998 and after 1981 are deemed to be an obligation of the State and
are not the liability of the Retirement System,

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Accounting

The City of New Bedford's Contributory Employees’ Retirement System's financial statements are prepared using the
accrual basis of accounting.  Plan member contributions are recognized in the period in which the contributions are
due. Employer contributions to each Plan are recognized when due and the emplover has made a formal commitment
1o provide the contributions. Benetits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms
of each plan.

Investment income is recognized as earned by the pension plan. The net appreciation (depreciation) in the fair value
of mvestments held by the pension plan is recorded as a incredse (decrease) o investment income based on the
valuation of invesiments as of the balance sheet dare,

The City accepted Section 22(1)(h1/2) of Chapter 32 of the Massachusetts General Laws in 1990, The City must
establish a funding schedule designed to fully fund the retirement system and to reduce the unfunded actuarial accrued
liability of the system 1o zero as of June 30, 2028, Any system for which a funding schedule has been adjusted and
approved may receive annual pension funding grants from the Commonwealth.

Operating Cyele
The accounting records of the Retirement System are maintained on a calendar vear basis in accordance with the

standards and procedures established by the Commissioner of Public Fmployee Retirement Administration
Commission,
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Maotes to Financial Statements {Continwed)

June 30, 2004

NOTE 6: Pensions and Other FPost Employment Benefits (Continued)
Method Used to Value Assets

Cash deposits are carried at cost which approximates market Investments in bonds and notes are stated at amortized
cost which approximates market. [nvestments in stock are recorded at market value.

Mlan Deseription

All full-ime employees, other than teachers, whose employment commences prior to age sixty-five are eligible to
participate in the City of New Bedford's Contributory Employees’ Retirement System.  Teachers and certain
administralive employees of the School Department participate 1n a contributory retirement plan administered by the
Maszachusetts Teachers' Retirement Board. The City does not contribute to this plan.

The Retirement Board exercises jurisdiction o determine an employee's eligibility for membership in cases involving
part time service. The participants contribute specificd percentages of their annual compensation to the plan, The
City's contribution is determined by the Division of Public Employee Retirement Administranon ("PERA™) on a cost
of benefits approach and, for the year ended June 30, 2004, was $14,572,.226,

As of December 31, 2003, employee membership data related to the pension plan was as follows:

Group 1 Group 2 & 4 Taotal
Active members 1,796 471 2,267
[nactive members 287 19 306
Retired members 1.162 565 1,727
3245 1055 4300

Under the provisions of the City's pension plan, pension benefits vest after ten years of creditable service, If the
employees are terminated involuntarily, benefits vest after six vears of creditable service if the employee became a
member of a public employee retirement system before January |, 1978, An emplovee may retire at age 55 and receive
annual pension benefits. The pension plan also provides for death and disability benefits. An employee's annual
pension is determined by multiplying his average salary by a benefit rate related to his age and job classification at
retirement and the resulting product by his creditable years of employment service. His average salary is the average
ofhis highest three consecutive years' salary or the average salary from his last three vears of service, if not consecutive.
For most employees, the average of the last three vears' salary will be their highest average salarv. The amount
determined by the benefit tormula cannot exceed 80% of the employee’s average salary as described above.
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Motes to Financial Statements {Continued)

June 30, 2004

NOTE 6: Pensions and Other Post Employment Benefits (Continued)
Retirement Groups
For retirement purposes employees are classified as Group 1, 2 or 4 employees;

Group 1 Officials and general emplovees including clerical, administrative and rechnical workers, laborers,
mechamics and all others not otherwise classified. Participants within this group are eligible to retire
at age 55,

Group 2 Electricians not classified in Group 1 or 4. Participants within this group are eligible to retire at age
55,

Group 4 Members of police, fire and electric light depariments not classified in Group | or 2. Participants
within this group are eligible to retire at age 453,

Funding Policy

Under provisions of State statutes, each employee 1s required to contribute 5% of his basic pay (exclusive of overtime)
toa special fund. For centain employvees without continuous service who are reemployed on or after January 1, 1975
and for all employees hired on or after January 1, 1975 but prior to 1984, the contribution rate is 7%. For employees
hired from 1984 through June 30, 1996 the contnbution rate is 8%. For employees hired after July 1, 1996 the
contribution rate is 9%. For all emplovees lured on or after January 1, 1979 there is an additional contribution of 2%
of salary in excess of 830,000, In addition, the City must provide annual contributions sufficient 1o satisfy the
actuarially determined contribution requirements s mandated by state statutés. Administrative costs of the Retirement
System are financed through investment earnings.

The most recent actuarial valuation of the Citv's Contributory Retirement System was prepared under the direction of
Public Employee Retirement Administration Commission (PERAC) as of Januvary 1, 2004, The standardized measure
of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability as of January 1, 2004, s as follows:

Actuarial acerued hability:
January 1, 2004

{unaudited)

Active members S 166,990,739
[nactve members 1,843 957
Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 212,115,760
Cost of living adjustment

Taotal actuarial accrued liability 380930456
Met assets available for benefis, at market 175 663.857
Unfunded actuarial acerued liability § 205286509
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Waotes to Financial Statements {Continued)

June 30, 2004

NOTE 6: Pensions and Other Post Employment Benefits (Continued)
Contributions Required and Contributions Made

Periodic employer contributions to the pension plan are determined on an actarial basis using the entry age normal
actuarial cost method. Normal cost is funded on a current basis. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability is funded
over a 3-year pertod. Periodic contributions for both normal cost and the ametization of the unfunded actuarial
accrued hability are based on the level percentage of payroll onan apen group method, The remaining amortization
period at December 31, 1998, was 29 yvears. The funding strategy for normal cost and the unfunded acuarial accrued
lrability should provide sufficient resources to pay employee pension benefits on a timely basis.

Taotal contributions to the pension plan in 2003 amounted o 821,011,955 of which $14,569,050 and $6.442 905 were
made by the City of New Bedford and its employees, respectively. The conimibuted amounts were actuarially
determined as described above on a fiscal year basis. For fiscal year 2004 the contribution amount of 14,819,118
was based on an actuarial valuation as of January |, 2001, The pension contributions represent funding for normal
cost and the amortization of the unfunded actuanal acerued liability. Contributions made by the City of New Bedford
and its employees represent 18% and 8% respeciively, of covered payroll for the vear.

[he covered payroll for the Contributory Retirement System far the yearending December 31, 2003 was approximately
582,981,340, The City's total payroll for all employees was approximately $153,404,272 for the same period, Covered
payroll refers to all compensation paid by the City to active employees cavered by the City of New Bedford PERS an
which contributions to the pension are based.

The Massachusents Retirement Board contributed $12,843.518 for benefits “on-behalf” of the schoaol department. The
ameunt was recorded as revenue and as an cxpenditures in the general fund in accordance with GASB-24,

The computation of the pension contribution requirements for 2001 was based on the same (a) actuarial assumptions,
{b) benefit provisions, and (¢} other significant factors as used to determine pension contribution requirements in the

Previous year.

Trend Information

2003 2002 2001

Net assets available for benefits as a percentage

of the actuarial accrued liability applicable to

the Citv's emplovees 31.4% 31.4% 51.4%
Untunded actuarial accrued liability as a

percentage of the Citv's annual covered pavroll L 79.2% 204, 1% [98.0%
Citv's comrihution to the pension plan & 4

percentage of annual covered payroll 17.6% 19.1% 26.5%
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
MNotes to Financial Statements {Continued)

June 30, 2004

NOTE 7: Other Employee Benefits
Other Postemployment Benefits

In addition to the pension benefits described above, the City provides health and lite insurance benefits to retirees, their
dependents and beneficiaries in accordance with Chapter 32B of Massachusetts General Laws under various
comributory plans.  Specific benefit provisions and contribution rates are established by callective-bargaining
agteements, state laws, and City ordinance.

NOTE 8: Other Commitments

The City of New Bedford and New Directions has entered into various operating leases for real property, machinery
and equipment. Several leases comtain a renewal option for varying periods at similar or reduced annual rates, As of
June 30, 2004, future minimum rental payments under operating leases that have initial or remaining noncancellable
lease terms are immaterial,

NOTE 9 Contingencies

There are several lawsuits and claims in which the City is involved. Both City officials and their legal counsel are
unable to express an opinion as to the ultimate outcome of all the cases, and therefore the provision for loss has not
been accrued in the accompanying financial statements. Tt is the opinion of both the City officials and their legal
counsel that the results of these cases should have no matenal adverse effect on the financial position as of June 30,
2004,

The Keith Middle School's land site had to be developed to satisfy the Environmental Protection Agency. In fiscal vear
2003 the City of New Bedford incurred $184,269 in environmental expenditures and in fiscal year 2004 the City
incurred an additional $1,440.346. In fiscal year 2003 the City of New Bedford is expected 1o spend approximately
86,462,397 for the remainder of the costs.

Wastewater Capital Improvement Program

To date, the City has financed the Wastewater Capital Improvement Program, through direct loans from the
Massachusetts Water Pollution Trust totaling approximately 8151 million, which loans were secured by the issuance
of City Revenue Bonds pursuant 1o the General Resolution. [n addition to the Trust loans, the City also has issued
general obligation bond anticipation notes to finance those projects in the Wastewater Capital Improvement Program
that are not eligible for financing from the Trust under federal and Massachusetts law. Such bond anlicipation notes
will be repaid through general obligation of the City or additional City Revenue Bonds,

In addition, the City anticipates that it may receive funding from cerfain state and federal grants and from the
settlement of environmental Superfund litigation between the EPA and other parties (not including the City) related

to the City's Inner Harbor.

The residual cost of the facility to be funded through user fees and tax levy cannot presently be determined. No
provision for any liability that may result has been made in the hasic financial statements.
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
MNates 1o Financial Statements (Continued)

June 30, 2004

NOTE 9: Contingencies (Continued)
Wastewater Capital Improvement Program (Continued)

The City of New Bedford has signed a consent decree with the Envircnmental Protection Agency ("EPAM),
Commonwealth of Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection ("DEP") and the Conservation Law
foundation concerning the construction of waste treatment facilities, the reduction of combined sewer overflows and
compliance with certain provisions of the Clean Water Act (the "Act"). The consent decree required, among other
things, the building and full operation of a Secondary Treatment Plant by January 19, 1997, Based upon final
specifications and the City's recommendead plan for compliance, the City has estimated that total construction costs for
the wasle treatment program will be approximately $193.2 million hased on present day construchon costs.

Sullivan's Ledge Eserow Fund

The City has received notice from EPA that it may be liable, along with several third parties jointly and severally, for
costs associated with the elean-up of pollutants at Sullivan's Ledge. Management has indicated that the Cin's liability
for the clean-up of this dump site will be $600.000 for the Sullivan's Ledge Middle Marsh area (Operable Unit #2),
broken dewn into payments of $300,000 in fiscal 1998 and $300,000 in fscal 1998 plus $30.000 for fencing in fiscal
1993, For Operable Unit #1, negatiations are currently in progress, Sertlement was reached with the govermment in
November 1994 to provide maintenance at site. The City has agreed 1o appropriate in an escrow account $15.000 per
vear beginaing in fscal 1998 for thiny years as financial security.

- Operation and maintenance of the following activities be giming in vear | for 30 vears;

Yearly 30 Year Total
Treatment Plant g 227,000 §  6.825.000
Cap Maintenance 7,720 512,000

0o 155,000
100,000

Fence Maintenance and Repair
Traffic Control (2 vears)

L
[ Y
[ N Y
ol
=

$ 287,120 §  7.596,000
City Commitment to Private Parties

The City will put $700.000 into an interest bearing account that is exc lusively available to the Group in the event that
the City fails to adequatcly perform its in-kind service obligations. This $700,000 would be deposited into the escrow
on the following schedule: $300.000 on July 1, 1998 and $100.000 on July 1 of each consecutive vear far four years,
The principal and interest would remain in the account for 15 years. The City could then annually draw down the
escrow in I/13 increments,
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Maotes 1o Financial Statements (Continued)
June 30, 2004
NOTE 9: Contingencies (Continued)
Schamonchi Parking

One June 5, 2003, an agreement was made between the City of New Bedford, "LICENSOR and Woods Hole Martha's
Vineyard and Nantucket Steamship Authoriry "LICENSEE™,

The City of New Bedford licensed o the LICENSEE a parcel of land on East Rodney French Boulevard in New
Bedford, owned by the LICENSOR containing 119,572 square feet. The City of New Bedford licensed the premises
for the term of s1x months begimmng May |, 2003 and ending Ociober 31, 2003

The leased premises are used for purposes of off-street parking. The pnmary function of the parking lot is o provide
parking for passengers using the Schamonchi ferry service between New Bedford and Martha's Vineyard.

Rent for the premises is $30,000 due on June |, 2003 plus twenty-five percent of any amounts above the LICENSEE's
direct or allocable parking costs (which costs include LICENSEE s rent payment of $50,000, but does not include such
items as LICENSEE's general overhead) to operate its New Bedford parking lots during the term of this License
Agreement. This payment is doue by November 30, 2003,

NOTE 10; Lease Revenues

The City of New Bedford leases property on Hathaway Road to Johnson Torfand Golf Management, Inc. Arcas of the
land were designated part of the Sullivan Ledge Superfund site, as determined by the Environmental Protection
Agency, The lease is for 35 vears and began March 24, 2000 and s for $120,000 per year less a credit of $5,333 for
unanticipated water consumption costs. In addition, this fee can be abated for individuals who had a membership o
play at the Whaling City Golf Course during the 1999 calendar vear up to a sum of S100,000. The remaining fee will
be adjusted annually by the consumer price index beginning in 2003,

The land was leased for the operation of an 13 hole public golf course, As stated in the lease agreement, the Whaling
City Golf course s required to submit to the City of New Bedford, a cenified annual audit of the financial records. An
audit was not performed during 2004, however, the Golf course anticipates submitting a complete set of audited
financial statements 1o the City for 2005,

NOTE 11: Joint Venture

The Ciry of New Bedford, the Harbor Development Commission, and the Redevelopment Autharity have jomed in an
agreement with the Whale's Tooth Parking Lot. The City of New Bedford owns this parcel of land and has bought
all lighting and fixtures associated with the parking lot. The agreement between the parties is that the Harbor
Development Commussion will operate the parking lot and colleet all parking lot revenues and will pay for all
expenditures associated with the parking lot. When profits are generated [rom the parking lot operations, the Harbor
Development Commission will begin to pay back the City of Mew Bedford for the fixtures and equipment that the City
placed into service to operate the parking lot, Five percent of any revenue over budgeted expenditures will be remitted
to the Redevelopment Authority for their involvement in the project.
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
June 30, 2004
NOTE 12: Debt
Primary Government

Under state law and by authorization of the City Council, the City is authorized to borrow on a temporary basis to fund
the following:

® Current operating costs prior to the cellection of revenues through the issuance of revenue or tax
anficipation notes (RANS or TANS),

L] Special Revenue, capital projects and enterprise fund costs incurred prior to obtaining permanent
firiancing through the issuance of bond anticipation notes (BANS) and

® Federal and state aided capital projects and other program expenditures prior 1o receiving
reimbursement through the 1ssvance of federal and state aid anticipation notes (FAANS and
SAANS)

Short-Term Debt

The City issued a $8,600,000 Bond Anticipation Mote, dated June 30, 2004, maturing February 25, 2005, This note
was issued 1o construct the Keith Middle School,

The City issued a §7.500,000 Bond Anticipation Note, dated September 26, 2003, maturing June 25, 2004, This note
wias issued for the following:

S 1.500.000 Campbell School £ 1000000 Lincoln Schoaol

§ 1000000 Brooks School 51,000,000 Winslow Schoal

53,000,000 Dredging

The City ssued a 527,950,000 Bond Anticipanon Note, dated February 19, 2004, matring February 25, 2005, This
note was 1ssued for the following:

£ 25,000 000 Nomandin Middle Schoal 5 1.800,000 Keith Middle Schoaol

£ 1,150,000 Land Acquisition

The City issued a $14,130,000 Bond Anticipation Note, dated June 25, 2004, maturmg February 25, 2005, This note
was issued for the following:
5 3,000,000 Dredging
£ 1,000,000 Lincoln School
£ 1,000,000 Winslow School
5 250,000 Land Acquisition
5 380,000 Landfill Cover

1,500,000 Campbell School
1,000,000 Brooks Schoal
1,000,000 Parking Garape
5,000,000 School

o0 5 Y

=%

The City issued a $1,250,000 Bond Anticipation Note, dated July 25, 2003, maturing June 25, 2004, This note was
issued for the following:

1,000,000 Parking Garage § 250,000 Land Acquisitian
The City issued a $14,000,000 Revenue Anticipation Note, dated July 23, 2003, maturing June 30, 2004,
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NOTE 12: Debt (Continued)

CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS

Motes to Financial Statements (Continued)

June 34, 2004

The City has the following bond anticipation notes pavable outstanding at June 30, 2004:

Capital Projects

Balance Balance Issuance Maturity

f 30413 Inereases {Decrenses) LEAUIE) Date [rate
Rond Antieipation MNede S BAHLOM b B SALDLHT) b3 (27003 162504
Bond Anticipation Mote T 5HD G i TS0 Ua2aa2 Uar2e:03
Bond Anticipation MNote 27 450,00H1 { 23050,000) 02027403 (2527704
Section | U8 btenm Loan® 1.748975 i 1. 748 978 03:26:03 [3/26/04
Bl Anticipatiom Mede 27.950,000 27950000 E19404 NHIFA0S
Boand Anticipation Nete B0 n0n B 00,00 LSRG DH2H05
Rand Anticipation Note 14, 130,000 146, | 30000 DE25:04 LU PEEE T ]
Raond Anticipation Nede 1. 250.000 | 1,250,000 0725003 D625/
Tond Anfroipation Mote T A00, 000 {7A00 00 {19 26/413 62504

42 504 975 S44 30,000 { 51349575 SEAEU G0
General Fund
Revenue Anlicipation Maote [ 000000 {1 0005 0725103 D6 30/04

L 000 005 {1 00060
§ 42300075 § 7330000 S( 553499735 S S0LGRD0

Thes balance was restited from the pnoe year finoneal statments

Tuterest
Rate

1.75%
3005
2.00%%

1.15%
1.53%
1.56%
2.50%
1.75%

1.75%
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Motes o Financial Statements {Continued)

June 30, 2004

NOTE 12: Debt (Continued)

Changes i halances of tong-term habilities ancluding current portion are as follows:

Governmental Activities

Mlaturity Balance ity Nate Balance Balance
Ddates Julby 1. 2003 Increases {Retirements) [ Subsidies ) June 30, 2004 Due in 2005
5.530% Landfill Closure Bond 0303794405 5 1.5a5.000 5 S GA0,HI0) 5 5 915,000 5 B0
A L4 H PR GO Bond (340G 3043000 [ 38300 2,60, 0 RICEREA T
A DA D% O30, Bond 05601 3 3.RB52.000 [ 247000 3605000 260000
A 6i-5 80% Note FOENTAT -] iy T ADS 00 [ 4700 G935 000 470,000
4.25-5.001%, G Bond R E4S8-10:0101 8 11445 A [ RUS M 11 00 Lns.nan
4,255 50%, GO Bond (A0 1024050221 47 3b0000 {1,540 000) 45,520,000 1 80000
4. 256 00% Revenwe Befunding
Hoand D297 & I'5. 450,000 | 4973 { 1LT55, 027 | 3 650, 000 1,705,000
4.010-5 25% Ravenue Bond 20195 % 1A, 675000 { 1.290397) [ 124005 113260, 000 2585000
4006 HIF Revenue Bond LEAY L TR 5445473 | L9465} { 310y 5,324,698 | 24 4155
25% Revenue Bond (20348033 2,230, 840 1,314 | I7.6E5) { 12,594 23750 QT G660
LY | 08-2003-A 501024050124 1,760,000 |, el uon 41000
Compensated Absenoes (RO T 1 T3 | Hl12,442) T, 174, 3 IETO.703
Capital Lases T2 0R8 737,322 [ 464.6H4) 1002 626 46, 741
Tutal governmental aclivity 5234 244 157 5 2AGR. 636 £ 6,005 150) S 2 HG3 434 3226854 200 5 13382165
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS

Notes o Financial Statements { Continued)

June 30, 2004
NOTE 12: Debt (Continuwed)
bt service requirements 1 matenty for losg- term doebr-
Less: Total
Subsidized
Total Tatal Total Favments Net
Principsl Inferest Debi (MWEAT) Obligation
2005 5 9046721 L (PR THIRE 5 19,147 669 5 4342077 s 14,705,592
2006 £.ETD, 640 GATI 9% 18,542 643 4,499 640 14043 003
2007 B.771, 3% G258 137 18029513 4,550,228 13,470,308
2008 9063109 .850,034 17913, 145 4.623.39] 13,289,754
2009 RN 0Th BA30,0034 17735110 4608258 13035852
2014 G020 093 8003520 1T 124,163 4755028 12 368,435
2011 9,396,926 T510,174 16967, 100 4 526,227 12140873
2002 9650, 304 TO8G, 756 16,777,056 4,894,440 LI 8E2.616
2013 9.053,127 6.585,600 16552007 AWE1 416 L LLA00A01
2014 10241 897 G058, 228 16,350,125 346 266 11,303,859
2015 10,376,324 5,521,344 5. EST.671 5167045 10,730,628
2016 10,748,058 497070 19,480 362 5297 187 10,392 575
2017 10,664 772 4416421 5081, 104 5428370 9652824
2ls 10,379,773 3807212 14,286,955 5,302,142 K.GR4 823
2019 10,711,495 3402634 140 14,131 5,167 408 2.0946,723
200 10413218 TR, 701 13310918 5,034,094 8276815
2021 143,765 940 2,291 &1 13,161,631 48401 68 269942
2022 72868662 | Ba8,050 G158 712 4,750,183 4,404 525
2023 TA08.184 |.518,548 HBO16932 4,634 281 4. 382.65]
2024 T A4 000 1,566,102 606,102 4402213 4,203 B84
225 76645 0000 B0 B 2455801 4,244,124 421 1677
200 T R65000 445,587 B.310.587 4,043,904 4,206,683
v g 0o H9.7 13 334,713 11T ET 123,906
e 1. 8 230,000 55000 325,000 117,687 7314
2029 280,000 B J19 875 111,958 20T9LT
2330 260 000 24,201 314,200 e 018 208.183
23l 205 THI b 03 LA DR 2EH 204 RER
5 MN66TT.219 § 115134687 5 320811886 § 166193926 L N561T 960
Authorzed and wnissoed debt at Jose 30, 2004 5 as follows:
lssued! %
Date Amgunt Retired State et
Purpose Authorized Authorized HRescinded Subsidy Amount
Lo £l Closune [F2A1 ] A5 5 401, (I 5 20,000 5 5 I80,0m
Mormuandin Middle School (5] 15, 200,006 38 200,000
keith Middle School [T R 42,000 WG 42 00, 004
Acgusition of Lard 1 2471 400 1150, HI0 (NS TR ]
Land Development [ERE TN AN SO (R SEH 000
Water Projects A |8, 560 {0 1085600
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
MNaotes 1o Financial Statements (Continued)
June 30, 2004

NOTE 12: Debt (Continued)

lssued! 0%

Date Amount Retired State Mot
Purpose Authorized Anthorized Hescinded Subsidy Amount
Mormandin Middle Schoal N80 101 11,659 6040 11,659,600
Keith Midedle School N800 11,784,000 11,784 000
Parking Garage 01002 [RUGTERATETH 1,000, 0000
Browks Elementary School 05A102 17,000 000 17,0080, 000
Campbell Elementary”

Meddle Schnol (15811402 47,200 000 47 204,000
Winshow Elesmentary Schicol 0501102 17,00 000 17 TR
Lincoln Elementary Schoot 050102 20, B00,000 20 60 000
Hurbor Dredinng RSN R RREARITH 3,000,004
Water Projects 0T 02 HA55 000 5,455 00
Lanud Gl Closwre 2003 RGO 1, B0, 000
Kailroad Depot IREVIRIE J0A0, D00 F.000,000
BeValles Elementary Schiool RN (ERBTRTY 11000 G0
Sewer Separation (BT £y, 1 57 i G, 5T O
Ratroad Depot (15227114 ESEIETHIG 2.000,0040
Harber Dredmng (52704 1,1 760,000 [ L7000
Equipment Purchases 52744 2 B0,y 2500 00
Condominium 527414 A0, 00,004
Incubatorhailding Rehabilitation 0527404 2,000,000 2,000,000
Sea Lab (527404 4,000 040 4,000, ()
Reconstecting & Paving Roads 52704 1 E00, (AR
Building Renovations 52704 1,150,000 1,050,000
Woiler Misins AT 4, 2005, 000 4,205 0
West Enct Sevwir Project (527004 21 608 (K10 21008 000

% 283347, 160 & 13856 5 § 283,258 604
o

The stane subsidy for the school suthorizanon s anticipated from the State Board of Education as part of the Schoal Building Assistance Program.

Dbt service reguirsments W materity (o shor-lerm debl:

Tuotal Total Total
Principal Interest Debt
2005 $ S0.680.000 % 556007 5 51.236.097

Capital Leases

The Ciry is oblipated under certain leases accounted for as capital leases, The obligation for the lease is accounted for
in the Govemment-Wide Financial Statements as a governmental activity. The following is a schedule of future

minimum lease payments under capital leases,

Year Ending Balance
June 30 Due

2003 3 490,472

2006 3338 489

2007 225944

Minimum lease payments for all capital leases 1,054,905
Less: amount representing interest £ 52.279)
i 1.002.626
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Motes o Financial Statements (Continued)

June 30, 2004

NOTE 13: Fund Deficic

The following individual funds had deficit fund equity balances as of June 30, 2004:

* %

TEEE

Governmental Funds

Special Revenue Funds:

EPA- West End Sewer T3 226:%%
Universal Breakfast Grant 3,708 =
Parker Breakfast Grant 10, 163*
Food Service Concession Stand 11,255 %
HOME Program 44,060 ¥k
Community Development Block Grant 412108 #*+*
Total Special Revenue Funds § 335471

Capital Projects Funds:
Chlorine Disinfectant Station 5 725 %%

Cs0

Normandin Middle School
Keith Middle School
Landfill Closure

Land Acquisition

Land Development

River Road

Winslow Elementary School
Elizabeth Brooks Elementary School
Lincoln Elementary School
Campbell Elementary School
Railroad Depot

BeValles School

Pierce Mill Park

W, End Cement Lining Ph 2
Incubator Project

Sea Lab Facility

434 977 *+
36,026,537 **
JA05,356 %4
|.462 806 **
[ 50,000 **
4,476,587 ¥+
IR FM0 **
TE0, 580 ¥
784,792 **
T95 840 *=
1,376,552 %
4486,503 *¥*
32465 *2
30,352 %
[20.063 *=*
313495 %+

37,273 **

Total Capital Projects Funds

5571001441
§ 57.656.912

The deficut balance will require a future administrative plan to fund this defieit and eliminate it, in
order to conform with Massachusens General Laws,

Total Governmental Funds

The fund deficit will be eliminated by future bond issuances,

The fund deficit will be eliminated by reimbursements from the Commonwealth of Massachusetts
or the federal sovernment,
The fund deficit is a result of the poor economy and the write-down of unrealized losses.

TiF



CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
MNates 1o Financial Statements (Continued)

June 30, 2004

NOTE 14: Subsequent Events
The following events relating to short-term debt accurred after the balance sheet date of June 30, 2004,

1. Revenue Bond Anticipation Notes were issued on July 1, 2004 in the amount of $11,000,000 for
general operating purposes.

The following event relates o the acquisition of & capital asset after the balance sheet date of June 30, 2004,

2 The City purchased a State Thearure Condominum (known as Unit One) on July 6, 2004, The
purchase price of 8388 000 is to be paid as follows;

Diue on July &, 2004 25000
Due on Delivery of the Deed GG 000
Due on a Promissory Naote

secured by the priorty mortgage 194,000

3 38R 000

i et 0

a4
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Notes to Financial Statements {Continued)
June 30, 2004

NOTE 15: Hestatement
I sonnie instances beginning Tond equity has been restated as a result of adjustments made o correct or reelassify prior year balances: Such adjustiments, summarized by fund 1vpe are as Tollows:

Governmental Funds

Mogi=Major Governmental Funds

Special Revenue Capital

Reserve for Spocial Revenoe Project Prermanent
Genersl Fund Woastewaier Appropriation Revolving Fumnds Funds

Bepinning balance, July L, 2003 L 1GANS6TTY ks 059 529 5 1,234,067 T 3064575 L 3680, 105) 5 LIs2007
Tov record due (rom other funds

fomr ball panied 1 prie vear

lor Cagntal Project Fund 3214 L5110
Tur close mon proprictary fund

1o (he geniral fund 31.753
To transfer unspent approprdim

budpet 10 CC DA Handicap Parking | 14,778 14,778
Tevgarrect trimsder Lo stibilization | 620,000
T correct wmvestmenty held ( 39.553)
Tocambine Sulbvan's Ledge Funds E 5K
Torecord due 1o Sullivan Ledge l Bl (K1)
Tos revlass amounts included as

Federal revenug in prioe year Tai45)
To reclass amounts as due from HEC 201.510)
Transler Olver Games o Expendable 3004
Transler Oliver Grimes from
Mon-Expendable { ERGE

Founding | 1}

Beginning balance, July 1, 20035,
restated 5 17639754 $ 461019 L 1763845 5 3025220 S 406316613 S 71951917
—r § —— -]

Proprietary Funds
Ciroup Insurance

Claims

Reginning balance, July L, 2003 b 10316135
To record Prudential stocks 1_E50,753

Beginning batanee, Tuly 1, 2003,
restiled 5 2182366



NOTE 15 Restatement {continued)

The following were the restatements that oecurred at the Government-Wide Level, This ineludes the adjustents above plus additional adjustments.

Beginning balance, July [, 2003

Restatements, per above

T aljust conmmunity development receivalbles,
net of allowance

To adjust deferred revenoe reversal

To reclass zoo aceraed interest

Tor reclass zoo compensated absendes amount
ter the govemmental activities

Torrecord capital leases

Tor reclass zoo long-term defn

Tor reclass oo capital assers

To reclass zoo accomulated deprecation

Tuo reclass capital assets

To record additional capital assers

[ar reond additional aveumulated deprecintion

Founding

Beginning balance, July |, 2003, restated

CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS

Primary Government

Moies to Financial Statements {Continued)

June 30, 2004

Mon-Major Component Units

Harhor
Governmental Business-Type Development
Activitics Activities Commission
g 113,006,694 5 1,427,601 b 6,222 585
1974107 { 37.753)
{ LOTH 648}
( 11,280,222 i 79,985)
{ f4,740) il T4
i R9.5063) 9,863
{ I5T201)
{ 7L630,0H00) 630,000
[ 120,915 [ (0,156,915}
{ UNZ.405) 052,405
i 16,740
544,176
[ 152,381%
{ L 2
5 104016372 by § 5725862

| o i
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Revenues:
Tax cillections net of refunds.

Rzl estate asd persongl
propTly axes

Motor vehicle excise

Fix liens angd  foreclosures

Onher excise collections

Peemalties wnad mitaest

Payments in Hew of axes

Chivgres fo) services

Water

[rash
Cemetorics
Parking

Fivy]
Depanmental

Livenses and parmils
Fimes and forleituress
Special issessments
Earnings on sneestments
Hher

Governmamttal revenue,
Fexferal
St

County

Total revenus

CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS

Required Supplementary Information

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures « (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
Budpet and Actual - General Fund

Original Budpa

Year Ended June 30, 2004

Encumbrances Appropriafions Encumbrances Variance
Carried Budgel as and Total Carricd Favoruble
Forwurd Adopied T'ransfers Availatle Actunl Forwiurd {Unfavornblc

5 & S ERSA43 k& Tl 1 A0 L A6ATH59 S hh476,543 i 5

5.104 560 Tid 414 5 B5E 98T 5 R02 054 [ Qi IR
104,000} | 29000 T5 00 1 IB2ELL) | 457811}
35 (00 | 15,000 L1000 11,845 L 28,155
A0 [ S0L000 1, L0 O0HD 1,087 563 [ 12,437)
2RO.0010 LRS H00 465,00H A0 a0 | Al
G T e 147 60 fr, 2485 OO0 tr, | 60,6 [ Ra 3000
[LEXTSIT 10,000 10413 433
555,000 { 125,000 230,000 252,015 X2,015
T35.000 | R0 EACH 835,000 BIR.008 3008
418,300 418,300 404 524 { 13, 376)
LB 46 [ Al 52 10,386,554 10,506 782 410,228
1 020000 { 2.5 L, 500 P2ug 457 195557
RUERATHIY ARLRATEN 313,000 176,321 | 136,279
1,083 3083
200,000 13,665 271,608 234,325 { 34,373
40T 416 4024146
32056 32,956
122750578 1866352 | 24 625 25 |25.077.654 451,429
209,055,537 10,436 020 219.44] 557 220,200,771 790,214

See nees o requined supplementasy information
See pccompanying andependent auditors” repon
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Expnditures

Cienerpl Covernment
Public safcty:

Police

Fire

EMS

tasprector of buikling,

{Mher

Public works amd tacilities:

Husalthy amd sanilson
uperations
Highwaiys and sureets

Education:
Schuool Departmaent
Ol
Humian services
Cultere and recreation
[Chebt service
Insurce and pession
Muntcipal Airport
Imtergovernmental
cxpenditure

Totl exponditurs

Excess {deliciency) of revenues

ower ex pendilures

Diriginal Budga

CITY OF NEW BEDFORLD, MASSACHUSETTS

Fogquired Supplementary information

Stavement of Revenues and Expenditurs - ( Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
Budpget and Actual - General Fund (Continued )

Yeqar Ended June 30, 2004

Encumbrarces Appropriations Encumbrances Varinmoe
Carried Budget as and Taral Carried Favorable
Forvward Adopied Transfers Availahle Actual Forward (Unfavornble)
5 14,140 14475573 1,032 368 1562208 1581 lﬁ.ﬁ;fﬁ' 4 500 i | GR.O86)
18,243.7Ih TaR &04 [9012.506 12116075 { 103.55%)
12,488,343 532982 13021325 13,034 560 { 13,244
2,128, 1% i 24 5000 2003693 2,100,413 ) &, T20)
DG 60 15,400 1014, 269 LD&RATT } 54,208
BUAR2 i 5,140 64,582 Al H0 5h 23,726
114,432 T 320 G5 B0 8,511,552 8,228 630 227,533 54,350
1,581,407 | 15, M0) 1 465,507 I 562682 56,981 { 154, 0663
H29. 32K 103,356,374 &0 0 |ix2, 385,702 L4043 TH5930 2204829
2,600,000 136,998 2,736 958 2,736,998
43024 1542201 177,745 2,063,030 2036575 44,151 { 17,676}
1298123 1292 450 2588573 2551 685 36,888
BA73,629 165,768 2530407 HoA3Y.353 54
13437518 4,994 300 3E432,118 39,05 A28 [ 15333109
RIIUN B 1035, 500 469,629 501,353 { FE.724)
1574471 1574471 1513412 61,054
i B E 209055 537 L1, 745082 22| al5.54 3 220,238 060 1,099 131 267,452
{ K00 924} [ 1,313.062) { F 15 UR6) 5] E11 L 1osaIz)y | 66 A5

See notes to required supphementary information
See pecompanying independent suditors” report
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Oripinal Budpo

CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSATHUSETTS

Reguiral Suppkementury Informaticn

Stntemnent of Revenues and Expenditunes - {Non-0AAF Budpetay Basis)
Budget and Actual - General Fund (Continuel)

Year Endod June 30, 20414

Encumbirances Appropriatiens Encumbrances WVarianoee
Carried Budyet as and Total Carried Favorahle
Farward Adopted Tronsters Available Actual Forward {Lnfavorahle)
Othier financomg sources and (uss)
Operittaneg Lransters in SELL TS 580,113 755,683 (75,570
Operateng s fers out | 27400 { 27400
Tashngs 165 000 165, 0 L5 0IH)
Overlay reserve A0, 000 G0 (0 IR
Fevienue delicat I 16,852) { 16,852} Th.852
Creerlay deficn { 7,2740) { 7.270% 7270
Appropristion deficr [ 7924, { 78924 7,929
Tolal other Ninancing
sourCes {Uses) 1,313,062 L 313,062 1,517 %4 04,881
Excess (deliciency) of revenus
wnd cdher Nnancing sources over
over expemditures and
other financing uses £ 0 B00S2, 5 b R 924 1,565,754 S L0ee 11 5 1,271,547

Budgetery fund balance at the beginming of (he vear

Budgeary fund balance at the end of year

19.56] 411

m— e T

5 71.131.185

See notes te regquiral suppkmentary infomsation
Hee aecompanying independent auditoes” repont
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Original Budga

CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS

Rogquired Supplamentary lnfoomation

Stavement of Revenues and Expenditunes « (S on-GAAP (Budgetary Basis)
Budpet iuned Actuil - Wisstewater Treatment Pl Special Revenue Fund

Year Ended Jene 36, 2004

Encumbrinces Budget Appropriations Available for Encumbrances Variinee
Carried &5 andd Current Year Carried Favomhle
Forward Adopted Transfers Expenditures Aviual Forward {Unfavorable)
Eevenes
Charges fon services 5 5 14,308,351 5 S 14,308,151 514084 440 & i To, 042
Earnings on investingmis 233129 235129 155,055 { 140744
(ther SUG S04, 000 730,705 230,705
Tolal revenues PS5 4] 4KD 15, 0ub | 4RO 15,274 203 232721
Ex pmid itures:
Sakaries | 085928 { Eo4,000) 081,928 Bl Gag | 34085
Chivges and savices [RYERAIATY) 8,704,300 HE 14300 T.647.328 25600 1,141,372
Materiaks and supphes 4,343 285,000 | R, IEQ 343 R LeRiTHR 19452 39800
Capatnd putky GTLHH) 4000 FO D00 TRATG 26,827 | 4,743
Dbt service G4 184 924 184 S Bl 3085
Tostal expuaschivrs 114 543 G412 11,210,785 G4 281 71,8749 | 334,591
Excess {delicienay) of reventids
wver ex pondilurs { 1 14,343) 3,945 D68 A RI0 728 b [ el 1 T18T9 LAAT. 314
Ol Nesancing sources and (uses)
Chperating lransfrsn
Operating transfirs oul 3945 068 i 3.045.068) (4445068 i 00,000
Total ether fnancing sources
and {use) {3545 000 [ 3945 068) [ AA45 D68 { SO0
Exciss (dehciency) of revenue
and oalier sources over
expendiunes and other wses E 114 343 3 5 51 114340 124 852 | 1879 45 1067 316
Frudgeriry fund habnee at the begmning of the viear T 2044 775
Bt getary fund balance o the end of 1he year £ 3069627

See notes 1o required supplementary information
See accompanying independnt suditors” repon
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CITY OF NEW BERDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Required Supplementary Information

Motes W Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures' Expenses and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budgel and Actual - Budgetary Basis

Juee 30, 2044

Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Reconciliation

The accompanying Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures or Expenses - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary
Basis} - General Fund and Wastewater Treatment Plant Special Revenue Fund are presented on the budgetary basis (o provide
ameaningful comparison of actual results with the budget. The major difference between the budgetary basis and the Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles ("GAAP") basis are thal

A) Revenues are recorded when received in cash (budgetary basis) as opposed to when susceptible 1o acerual
(GAAP basis), except for real estate and personal property taxes which are recorded when committed,

) Expenditures are recorded when paid in cash {budgetary basis) as opposed to when liability is incurred (GAAP
basis):
o Encumbrances are reported as expenditures (budgetary basis) as opposed (0 a reservation of fund balance

(GAAP basis).

Therefore, timing, perspective, and entity differences in the excess {deficiency) of revenues and other sources of financial
resources for the year ended June 30, 2004 are as follows:

Government Funds

General Special Revenue
Fund Wastewater-Operating
Revenues and other financing sources:
GAAP Basis 5 236,034,061 & 15,120,392
Adjustments;
Increase mm real estate and personal
property taxes Lo full acerual I 1L131.874)
(Increase) decrease in 60 day accrual [ 176,689)
MTEB on-behalf payments [ 12,843 318)
Unbudgeted MWPAT - School [ 70,526)
Unrealized loss unbudpeted [33.811
Budgetary Rasis £221.811.454 5 15274203
Expenditures and other Bnancing vuses:
GAAP Basis $233,155.744 5 14249351
MTRE on-behalf payments { 12843.518)
Unbudgeted MWPAT - Schoil i TO.526)
Budgetary basis 3 220,241,700 3 14.249 351

See accompanying mdependent auditors’ report
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Required Supplementary information

MNotes to Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures/Expenses and Changes
in Fund Balance - budget and Actual - Budgetary Basis (Continued)

June 30, 2004

Excess of Expenditures Oxver Appropriations

The legal level of control for which expenditures can not exceed appropriation is at the category level within a department (Le.,

salaries, charges and services; supplies and materials: capital outlay; and debt service,
For the vear ended June 30, 2004, expenditures exceeded budget in the General Fund as follows

Category Excess

General government £ 989386

Pubhe safety:

Police 103,559
Fire 13,244
EMS 6,720
Inspector of buildings 54,208
Public works, highways and streets 154 066
Human services 17,676
Insurance and pension 1,335,310
Municipal aimort 31.724
Total $2.113.493

See accompanying independent auditors” report
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Required Supplementary Information
Contributory Relirement System
Schedule of Funding Progress

December 31, 2003

(UNAUDITED)

Actuarial Accrued

Actuarial Actuarial Liability (AAL) Unfunded UAAL asa
W luation Reparting Value of Individual {Overfunded) Funded Covered Pereentape of
Date Yoear Assels Entry Ape AAL (UAALY Ratio Pavroll Covered Pavroll

[FERET R [993 4,143,583 189 285031 LF5, 34 449 44% 47.428,221 X220
URATEE 1994 R4, 143,582 180,485,021 LS 54| 445 447 Gih (4R B 50 | 75%
O14194 1995 84,143 582 189,485,031 L5 34 [ 449 44% 39.995,153 | ThH%
QLo 1996 54,143 582 [80485.031 (05,541 444 445, STAIB GG 182%
AR fhe7 133,140,586 248,033 540 114592954 4% 63 312,483 131%
1A% 19498 133.140,386 248,033,340 114,842 454 4% 57639014 | 993,
Q198 | 5 133,041,380 248 033,340 | E4EG97 954 4% 65,000,000+ 177%
(LR GR 200 133040386 248033, 330 114,892,554 54% GG 441 167%
HARVE AT 2001 57,1 29400 305,813,630 |48 634,222 51% T5 RS 435 985,
HTRRAT 2002 157,129,409 315.513.63 | 48,683,222 51%, T2843.213 204%
atanul 2003 157,129 409 5513631 | 46,684,222 51% B2.951.340 | 79%

[sclated analysis of the dollar amounts of net assets available for benefits, actuarial accrued liability, and unfunded actuarial acerued
liability can be misleading. Expressing the net asscts available for benefits as a percentage of the actuarial acerued liability provided one
indication of the Plans' funding status on a going-concern basis. Analysis of this percentage over ime indicates whether the system 1s
becoming financially stronger or weaker. Generally, the greater this percentage, the stronger the Plan. Trends in unfunded actuarial
averued liability and annual covered payroll are both affected by mflaton. Expressing the unfunded actuarial accrued liability as a
percentage of annual covered payroll approximately adjusts for the effects of inflation and 21ds in the analysis of the progress made in
accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due. Generally, the smaller this percentage, the stronger the Plans.

Note:  Actuarial valualions are only pecformed every three years, Accordingly, the information presented above is not comparative
berween years.

*Estmated

See accompanying independent auditors’ report
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Feguired Supplementary [nformation
Contriburtory Retirement System
Schedule of Employer Contributions

December 31, 2003

(UNAUDITED)

Year Ended Annual Reguired Year Ended Actual Percentage

June 30 Contributions December 31 Contributions Contributed
1994 & 12,368,235 1993 5 11991216 97%
1985 10930599 1994 11,610,801 [ 06%%
IG5 11,430,599 1993 1,344,300 5%
1997 10833227 1994 ELAIT.662 L0
998 12,134,738 1997 12,652,023 Lo
| 999 LL717.334 1998 [1.560.776 L08%
200D [ 1.0859.600 199% 11,088 000 100%
2001 [1.474.000 2000 11,474,000 100%%
2002 [ 1L A73.000 2001 11,873,000 100%,
2003 14,336,000 2002 14,343,564 100%
2004 4,819,118 2003 14,569,050 98%

Although annual required contributions are caleulated on a fiscal year basis, the City of New Bedford Contributory
Retirement System reports on a calendar year basis, therefore, some disparity may exist between required contributions
and actual contributions due to this timing difference.

The information presented in the required supplementary schedules was determined as part of the actuarial valuations
at the dates indicated. Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation follows.

The amount of the total actuarial accrued liability is based on 2 standardized measurement. The standardized
measurement 1s the actuarial present value of credited projected benefits. This pension valuation method reflects the
present value of estimated pension benefits that will be paid in future years as a result of employee services performed
to date and is adjusted for the effects of projected salary increases. The standardized measurement of the actuarial
accrued hability is intended to enable users of the financial statements to (a) assess the Plans' funding status on a going-
concern basis, (b) assess progress made in sccumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due, and (¢} make
compartsons among emplovers,

See accompanying independent auditors’ report
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Required Supplementary Information
Contributory Retirement System

Schedule of Employer Contributions (Continued)

December 31, 2003

A variety of significant actuarial assumptions are used to determine the standardized measure of the pension benefit
obligation. These assumptions are summanzed below:

The actuarial cost method used to determine liabilities and costs and to project future funding
requirements is known as the Individoal Entry Age Normal Cost Method. Under this method, the
annual normal cost of the system is determined as the total of each member's level percentage of
payroll necessary to fund all benefits expected to be paid if such percentage of cach member's pay
was and will be contnbuted from entry into the system until retirement, death or rerminatien of
employment. The actuarial liability on the valuation date is calculated as the amaunt which would
be on hand if all prior normal costs had been fully funded ar that date. The unfunded actuarial
ligbility 15 the actuarial liability less the assets,

Actuarial value of assets is market value,

Mortality is assumed to be in accordance with the RP-2000 Mortality Table, with ages set forward
two years for all disabled members,

Ten percent of assumed deaths represent "in line of duty” deaths.

Investment retumn on current assets and future contributions 1s assumed to be at the rate of 8.5% per
year, compounded annually. This return includes mterest, dividends and realized and unrealized
24ins.

salaries. mcluding longevity, were assumed to increase 5.0% per vear for cach member.

Cost-of-living increases have been assumed o be 3% of 12 000 per year,

Rates of disablement are assumed to oceur in accordance with a swdy conducted by PERAC with
rates ranging from 01% 10 1.25%.

It is assumed that 33% of all disabilities are cccupational for Group 1 and 2 members and that 90%,
of disabilities are occupational for Group 4 members,

Rates of tumover (termination of employment before becoming eligible for retirement) are in
accordance with a study conducted by PERAC with rates ranging from 0% to 1,50%.

Retirement rates were assumed to range from 10% 1o 100% for various ages, positions within the
government and genders.

The most recent actuarial valuation of the Plan was prepared as of January |, 2004,

Mo changes in actuanial assumptions or benefit provisions that would significantly affect the valustion of the actuarial
accrued liability eccurred during 2003

See gecompanying independent auditors’ report
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Supplementary Information
Major Governmental Funds - Wastewater
Combining Balance Sheet

June 30, 2004

Special
Operating Projects Service Tutal
ASSETS
Cash, unrestricted 2317012 S .3 § 2317012
Cash, restricted a6 401,137 Jab, 009 2,620,051 9,367,197
User charges receivable 1,556,782 1,556,782
Special assessments receivable, current 6,868 16,868
Other recevables 62,9352 2,952
Due from other funds 428,123 LLLLL62G 1,539 749
Special assessments recetvables, noncurrent 188411 185,411
Total assets $ 10971285 § 1457635 5 2620051 § 15.04897]
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Warrants payable & 08261 & 107370 b3 5 813,831
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 22,751 76,480 59,231
Deferred revenue 825,014 1,825,004
[ue 1o other funds 6,232 444 | 59444 567 H.392.455
Total liabilines B.788.470 343494 567 6,132,531
Fund balances:
Reserved/designated 1,527,476 2619484 4,146,560
Unreserved £55.239 1,114,141 1,769,480
Total fund balance 2,182,815 1114141 2619484 58916440
Togal liabilities and fund balances § 10971285 § 1457.635 § 2620051 % I5.04897]

See accompanying independent auditors” report
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Revenues:
Unility usage charges
Inte FeoVErnmen tal revenues
[nvesiment income

Crther
Taotal revenues

Expenditures:
Salaries
Charges and services
Supplies and materials
Capital outlay
Deht service

Fotal expendiures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over expenditures

Other financing sources an {uses)

CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS

Supplementary Information

Major Governmental Funds - Wastewater (Continued)

Combining Statement of Revenues and Changes in Fund Balance

For the Year Ended June 30, 2004

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other

sources over expenditures and other uses

Fund balance - July |, 2003, restated

Fund balance - June 30, 2004

Special Debt

Operating Projects Service Taotal
5 14,384,443 % 14,384 443
6,938,739 6,038,739
5,244 5244
T30,705 T30.705
[5:020,3923 238730 22039 131
R46.939 R4/.930
T.04T 327 7,647,327
310,001 310,001
78916 228323 307,239
97| 0us L0.971.125 L1892 224
0504 282 228323 11,971,123 21003730
5316,110 [ 228,323) [ 4,032 3806) 1,055,401

{4445 068) 500,000 3.945.063

R7L.042 271.677 | 27 318) 1055401
[.311.773 842 4pd 2,706,802 4.861.039
$  ZAIR2ELS 3 1.114.141 £ 2A19.484 5916.440

See accompanying independent auditors’ report
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Supplementary Information
Wastewater Reserved Cash Account Activity

June 30, 2004

Renewal &
Operating Drehy Replacement
Heserve Reserve Nerviee Reserve Special Unrestricted
Fund Fund Fund Fund Projects Fund Total
Beginning halance 5 2,789,423 £ Z3KZEL3 8 2,706,803 135058 S saka0l 5 107236k S 11,200 468
Transters in B2 3R | 22318) 4 R754TH { 9541 4,292 TET4 19698172
Transters oue 1504 480 Tha4T7 459462 250 44 919 126,384 | 080 461 21532441
Endmg balance 5 2,590,312 £ 2283 548 § 2620051 £ 1527474 T 346000 219} 8 03RT1497

See accompanying independent auditors’ report
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ARSETS
Cashpnd invesiments
Fuederal amd stale grangs

receivable
Losans recejvable
Hecerable, pther
Land isventory

Crue Tronm other Tunds

Tinal assels

Hiphway
Improvements

Revolving

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)

Liablities:

Warrants pavable
Accounts pryabie and acerued

PR PSS
Bond payvable

Ritamoge payahle

Due o other funds

Dure 30 federal or stne poy 1
Dederred revenue

O labilities

Total linhilities

Fund balances {delicis):

Restricted

Unresinctad, undesignated
Taotal fund balances

Total hahilities and lund

halinces

3 30,508 § 1,360 445
LR Rk 2354967

26317

14,126

; 232384 § 3761615
5 S0 131 5 25,554
IHATI B,703

G368 36,467
237,243 6R, 724
1662891

3,502 401

§ 271353 $_1I61,615

CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS

Supplementary Information

Maon Major Governmental Funds

Special Revenwe F
Combimng Balance

Tune 30, 2004

Heserve
For
Appropriation Donations
5 1,260,704 5 56,632
LRI
5 1,320,704 5 56612
L 3 5
10,114 4,230
10,114 4 236
1 31{L588 521064
1,310 58k 52,396
b 1,320,704 5 56632

See accompanying independent auditors® report

unds

Sheet

Federal'State
Girants

& 1.108.746
| BES.262
9692
16,267

§ 3.124.067

5 31277

677,034

182 242

43%A65

1,640,418

P,

| 453,640

P ' L1

| 4B3 649

3 3124067

Sehaool
Cirants

5 34025645
1676547
95,459

3 5174701

S _Soft i TS

§ 196 TH4

63,677

l2.e17
4,092,264

4365 302

—a T

R0 390

SOMRES. L T

B04 394

—— L

5 5,174,701

Community

Develapment Subtotal
& 0,013 § 7979083
8579 606 14,692,257
12,575,539 12;573.539
22, Mok 269,954
246,%18 6918
hR A | 36,2493
§ 22,178,142 § 35816 144
5 333,588 5 986 054
12), 184 921421
Li636 11,636
18,941 324331
12.617
2163801 25695530
IR 742 128742
21969 652 28,280,177
208,450 1551393
208,450 1557373
3 2LITE 42 § 35838 144

Go



CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Supplementary Information
Mon Major Governmental Funds
Capital Project Funds
Combining Balance Sheet {Continued)

June 30, 2004

850 Fyod Fyaa Fya7 Fyou Police Loy
Relocate Bond Issue Baond Issue Bond Issuc Bond Issue Band lssue Band Issne
ASSETS
Cash and imvestinems 5 | 34 B60 5 5 5 £ 113682 b b
Fedderal and stale prants receivable
Recervable, other 54,730
[rae from other funds
Tustarl wssels 4 | R 500 5 i 5 § 113682 5 5
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)
Liahilitics
Warrants pavable 5 * L4 3 5 & §
Accounts payable and sccral ceponses 04|
Bond pavable
Fotmnage payahle 2308|
[rue to other funds 5330554
hher habilites
Teatak Bl 624,576
Fund balances (deficis
Hestricted
Unrestnioted/undesipnated { 434977 113,682
Total fund balanees {43497 113,A82
Tatal hahilsies and Tund balances 5 159599 5 £ 5 £ 11 3,fili2 5 5

See accompanying independent auditoes” report
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS

Supplementary Information
Man Major Governmental Funds

Capital Project Funds

Combining Balance Sheet (Continuad)

June 30, 2004

Miw Woater Chlodine
Hosscvelt Mlain Disinfectant Normandin Keith Landfill Land
Construction Bond Issuc Station MS M5 Closure Acguisition
ASSETS
Cash and investments 5 3eR0LNS 5 41038 7| 1,725 8 5323419 pogr iy e | SL017.73 0 5
Fedieral and state granis
receivalile
Revenable, other
e from nther Tunds
Tobil nssets 5 36R(0095 § 41088 & 1,725 S0 5323439 £.7,575.231 B0I7.730 b
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)
Liabiligies:
Warrants pavable 5 b 5 5 5 b 5
Acoounis pavible and accreed expensss 532,561 55129 65,074
Bond payable 30,000,000 10,400,000 0,000 || 180,000
Fetninage pavable TIN5 23,256
D 1z cther [unds
Other Habalibics,
T'edal hishilities 31303 108 104980577 445,074 1. 150,000
Fund halances (deficins):
Resiricied
Linrestrictad undeapnated AaR0.005 4| 05K [ 1.725) { 36,626,537 {3405 1560 {1 462 806 {1150
l'otal fund balunces A NR0005 41 4154 { 1,72%) 36626537 { 3405 356) L1 A6 BOG {1150 000
Tatal fabilities and lund
halanees 5 3680005 g 41058 5 1725 5 532342 £ 7875721 SiLOIT. 7310 i

Sew pocompanying imdependent auditors” reporn
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ARRETS
Cazh and imasiments
Fiedderal and state oranis
recenvable
Receivable, other
D Arom atheer Tunds

Todal mssels

CITY OQF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Supplementary Information
Mon Major Governmental Funds
Capital Projects Funds
Combining Balance Sheet (Continued)

June 30, 2004

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)

Lighilities:
Woarrnints panvalsle

Accounts payvable and sconusd

CXPENSeS
Hond pavable
Retainage payable
e o odher Bunds
Other habelities

Tivtarl Beanbwalities

Franul bakances (delicits):
Restricted
Unrestricted undesimated

Tl fund balances

Total hiabilities and fund
balances

1002 SALC-
River Roacl Winslow Elieatrth Lineoln Comphell Hailroad Dredpe
___Boud Elementary _ Brooks Elementary Elementary Depot Giran)
S0 438310 5 210,894 5 215460 5 204634 50124169 52671 438} S 187,210
111,383
A 43RG 5 210 804 . Mia9l 5 204634 5 124,169 S 2671436 5. 58527
5 5 5 5 & 5 14
4R 4383 453 721 1,524.473 1,170,000
1AM MY 1060, 000 [T R T B, S90, 000 3,250, (00
51243
239,350
Tal
IGO0 4873 1000 483 100453 I 500721 1815077 44207601
{ 43RS { TRYAEY [_IR4,793; [ 198 849 (1.376,552) 4,486,513 [ 4,476,587
438500 [ TRY. S5 L TH4.790) [ (1,376,552 (4486515 [ 2476587
S 43R3 N £ 210894 & 215691 5 Hioid 5124 164 S(24T1.436) £(_ 55RID

See arcompanying independent auditors” report
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS

Supplementary Information
Non Major Governmental Funds

Capital Projects Funds

Crombining Balance Sheet {Continued)

June 30, 2004

West End HDC EPA D
Devalles Prerce Cement Heimb Incubator Oak Blufl Sea
Elementary Ml Fark Lining Phl Agrecmint Praject Ferry Terminal Lah
ASSETS
Cash and investments R R21LAGE) S0 16242} by 51 44735} 51 134,652 5 313,200
Federal and state grants
recervable
Receivahle, ather
Due from cahier funds 44,715
Total assels S 32| 465 S0 16240 5 5 S 124682y 5 313,200
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)
Laabilitics
Warranls payahle 5 5 5 5 5 5
Accounts payable and poorued
N PETISS 34,11 122,773 174,803 51.273
Bond pavable
Retuinage pavable fi, 2%
Dhge 1o vt her funds
Oiher liabiliies 313,200
Todal liakbalities 343040 129 D62 178 B3 13 200 57,273
Fund balances (delicits)
Restricted
Linrestricted ‘und egnaled 331 A465) { 50.552) {129 63y { 315495 55T
Total Tund balimces {321 465) i 50,552) [ 129.063) {13495 57271
Tt Teabilities amd Find
bulances S0 321 465) 5 16,242 b 5 SL_134.602) 5 113,200

Seeaccompanying independent auditons' report
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORI, MASSACHUSETTS
Supplememntary Information
Non Major Governmental Funds
Capital Projects Funds
Combining Balance Sheet (Continued)

June 30, 2004

EFPA Phase 2 Woaslewater AlP 27
Vulnerahility Reginal-Alrspace Parking 20 Taxiway B
Assem _ Study Garape Treatment Construction __Suhrotal
ARSETS

Cash and investments % 5 G020 b THA437 F MNIT b3 454673 S 2682 804
Federal iwnd stide grants receivithle 3T 370,170
Receivihle, ather 166,113
D froan cthgr Tunds 32,358 7003

Taotal assets 3 £ 9930 5 4457 § 1237 i 448701 § 3296 1R0

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)
Liabilities:

Warmnis payable 5 s 5 & L 5

Accounts pryahle and acorued

UR ENses 441,504 4,086,263

Bond payable 000,000 SOGRO0D

Retainage payahle 200 447,349

e g dhier Tundy 55,747 29,660

Other labtlities 313960

Total Labales 1002 800 50,747 440,554 57,457,233
Fund bulanees {deficits):

Festnoted

Unrestrictediundesignated LR 23463 11 00 7607 34,061 052
Total fund bidanoes 9 520 Y23.463) 11 A8 1,607 54061052
Tl lzabifities and fand bidimces 5 5 09.520 5 79417 O A Y 51 S 448201 5 3290 18D

Ste pecompanying independent auditors” report
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS

Supplementary Information

Non Major Governmental Funds

Combiming Balance Sheet (Continued)

Permanent Funds

June 30, 2004

Monexpendable Expendable
Trusts Trusts
ASSETS
Cashe s mvestiments 5 B2IRTII 5 3JBIAl4
Federal and state receivable
Leans receivable
Receivable, other
Acorued imerest B.A0
Land inventory
Drsefrem cttier Tunds
Testal assels 5 8297304 5 2RS4
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liubilities:
Warrants payable b SURT 5
Accounis pavable and aceneed
X enses
Bond payable
Retainage pavable
e to other funds 100 2864 1213
Druse 10 fecheral and slate
EOVETTIIOETILS
Dederred revenee
Cither liabilitees
Togal fiabilises 106,27 1,213
Fund balanges
Hestrcted 4,677 885
Linrestricted undesigmuted 31513646 281301
Tetal fund balance B 191,531 FRL301
Tetal lesbilaties and fund
balanves 5 B297 804 S RS54

Subtotal

5 B.571. 427

5E91

5 5,987

161,499

107 486

— T T L

4,677,885

3,704 947

2471832

L flad E T

5 8580318

See accompanying independent auditors" repart

Taral
Mon Major
Covernmental
Funds

5 19,233.414
15,0062 427
12573519

ATHO6T

8891

246918
2136

5 47.714.647

At R T

S ueIisl

5.607 634
S0,080,000
958955
1,255 45

12617
25695930
642 T2

85,845 489

4,67TT.885
{42 A08,730

{18 130847

4 4T 714642

—
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Supplemenlary Information
Maon Major Governmeental Funds
Special Revenue Fusids
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Year Ended June 30, 2004

Heserve
Highway For
fmprovements Revalving Appropriation Danations
Revenuoes:
Federal and state grants 5 131362 5 6295416 5
Investiment ingomeg 263 | 15105} 510
hher excise 15865
Fines and penaltcs 4140
Charges for senvices | Hd5, 200
Oither income S00.052 141371 410
Tetwl revenues LA 362 8520074 126 466 41,559
Expenditures
Ciegteral government 24 955 FI088
Public safery I 12007
Public works 301,362
Health and human serviees G430 (R
Educatinon TA461,539
Community and sconomic development
Municipal sirpor
Culture and recreation 104,242 [5.318
Dbt service
Prirzipal
Interest =
Tatal ¢xpatditures 130 a2 T.A08 192 31088 16515
Exiems (deficieney) of revenue
over expenditures T16, T34 93378 25,044
Ciher finanzing sources {uses)
Transfers between funds { 49013} { A6, 635
Exvess (deficiency) of revenues
and other sources over
expemditures and oflier uses T AT 46,743 25,044
Fund bafance (deficit), July |, 2003,
ws restated 1025220 1,263 845 27,352
Fund balance (deficit], June 30, 2004 5 § 3p0rEn] § 1alnsas 52,396

See accompanying independent auditors” repert
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Supplementary Information
Mon Major Governntental Funds
Special Revenue Funids
Combiming Stautement of Revenees, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balancis (Continued)

Year Ended June 30, 2004

Federal/State School Community
Grants Cirants Drevelopment Subtotals
Rewvenues:
Federal and state grants 5 §.820,694 5 20,965 545 5 4.710,m09 5 4Z104.126
Investment meome 30,4971 Lt 648
Other excise L5865
Fimes and pinaliies 4140
Charges for services 1,645,200
Chher income 1,022 300 L OT04924 1055391 3,89],329
Tosal revenis FR42.403 22036471 3798071 47.67T.308
Expenditurncs:
General government 158,918 456,071
Public saiety 1670722 178X729
Public works 3.8901,157 T, 644 3,984,143
Health and human services 338301 119724 T35.675
Fducation 21.045,558 20307097
Community and economic developmen| 144,330 32278 3,276,608
Mlunicipal airpont Ban, 914 B46.914
Cultore and recreation 23580 245 10 503,144
Db service
Prncipal [[E R3] 1 000
Igrest 12,306 24,306
Tzl expendilures 9643 244 21 945 554 G AT 1L G AT, 225 6007
Excess (deliciency) of revenue
aver ex penditures 195, 150 511 i 6135 451,701
Dither (nancmg souTees §uses )
Transfers between funds S5451 hE3
Excess (deliciency ) of revenues
and ciher sources over
experiditires and other uses 295550 Al { TSI 452 384
Fund balance (deficit), July |, 2003,
a5 restated I,188.059 118486 BR2.027 7,104 989
Furd balance (deficin), June 20, 2004 E [483.640 5 i a0 5 208 450 5 TA5T.AT3

See accompanying independont auditors’ repor
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Revenues
Federal and stale prants
Investment ineome:
Other

Teal revenues

Expuanditures:
Cieneral government
Public sifey
Public works
Education
Community and coonnmic development
Muncipal airpon
Coalowre and recrepnon

Taotal expenditures

Excess {deliciency) of revenue over
expendilures

Oither Mnancing sources [uses):

Transfers belween funds
Bond procesds

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
andd other sources over
crpdilures and oiher uses

Fumd balamces (delicit),
July 1, 2003, &5 restated

Fund balances {defici),
Jume 30, 2004

CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS

Supplmentary Infonmalion
Mon Mapor Governmental Funds

Capital Progects Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2004

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Chimges in Fund Balances (Continued )

CH0 FY94 Fy%a Fy97? Fyas Palice Laon
Relocaty Fond lssue Bond lssue Bond Issue Bond lssue Bond lssue Bond lssue
S B48.257 5 5 5 5 5 5
K48, 257
5140
1. 180,063
11,542
I 180 06E 11,542 5,140
(331806 ( 11,543) (51409
i H4] { 1,277 [ 5,581 { 25.835)
[ 33 BOa i B4 { 1,237 L 11,842y [ 10,722) [ 25835)
103171y Ad 1,277 125,524 140,722 25835
44340977 g 5 5 113,682 i i

Sex accompanying independent suditoes” repost
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Ruvemues
Foderil ndd state grants
Ivestiment inoome
811 TR |

Toaal revenues

Expoendilures:
Cieneral govermiment
Public safely
Pulie wirks
Education
Commmunity and coonomie development
M umigrpal airport

Culture gnd recneation
Tosal expendituras

Excess (deficiency ) of revenue over
exprnditires

CHher finuscing soumces {uses):

Transfers between funds
Bend procecds

Excess (Uefciency) of revenues
and other sources over
e pendituns and ather uses

Fund balances (<efiet),
July 1, 20003, 5 restahs]

Fumsd balassces (deficit),
Jupee 30, 2004

CITY OF SEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS

Supplementary Inleanation

Mom Magor Governmental Funds

Capital Project Funds

Combining Ststement of Revenues, Expenditures and Chimiges in Funid Balanccs fCoatinued )

Faor thee ¥ear Ended June 30, 20014

Tats Water Chlorine
Koosevelt Main Dhsinfectant Mormandin keith Landfill L
Constroction Bond 1ssue Stidion MS M5 Closure Acguisition
£ % 0 3396 L L 5 5
242875
54 30 M2 AT
| 2604 Ta4.567

HR6EA] 6,910,985 1,440,346

BRA A { 2.604) 5.910,9%5 | 4401346 144 567
l REGRALE) A L B985 1540 146) [ W

20,000
1,314

{ Lo EOL) SR04 1ea098%) [ 1,440,345] ¢ ARLGYDY

4 366456 41 058 | A0, 025y (29, 715553 [ L.Sa5 000} [ G814 1,1 500,000
£  XeR0DDO9S 5 41058 51 L125) S(An 626,537 S35, 356) S 1 462 A06) St L 050, 000%

See accompanying indepesdent auditors” report
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Supplementary Information
Won Major Governmental Fusids
Capital Privject Funds
Combaming Statemen! of Revenues, Expenditures and Chimges in Fund Balinces (Continued)

For the Year Ended Juse 30, 204

2002 SAC-
River Road Winslow Elizaheth Lincoln Cumpbedl Railroad Dredge
Baond Elemeninry Broeks Elementary Elementary Depat Girant

Revenus: :

Fuoderal and state grants 5 5 & 5 5 5 3

Investment inoome

Other 16 TTH

Total revenoes 164 778

Ex pranditieres

Cicneral government

Pubhic safery

Pubhic works 1,170,661

Edurcation 146,898 152,791 5875 1133

Community snd economis development 2,760 L3

Muricpal airport

Culteere and recreation

Total expendituns [ KOs |52 T ] 1k 133 2,760,180 1170061
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over

cxpendilures {146 898 { 152791 i 5.ETS) { 141,133 (2595411 L IP0061)
Other Nnancing sourees (uses )

Transfors between funds

Bond procecds
Exciss {defiviency) of revenues

and other sources over

expenditures and other uses {0 14G R9HY {52790 | R8Ty { 1133y {2,595411) {0 L7008 )
Fund balanees {deficit),

July 1, 20403, & Festated 43R 1) [ 64260 L 632,000) [ TRAHGT4) (1 bt A14) [ 1.R81.102% {3 MI6.S526)
Fund balances {deficit),

June 341, 20H4 S 43R S0 TEO5RG) 5 T84, 792) S 795849, SLLITGS52) g 4 4H:f|=5|."|} g 4 4?%557}

See accompanying independent audiiors” repon
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Rt
Federal amd state grants
Investment ieome
CHher

Todal revenucs

Expemditures:
General govermmenl
Pubshic safery
Frubilic works
Education

Copmunity and economid development

Municipal airpon
Cultuere and rogreation

Total expendilures

Exeess (delicrency) ol revenue over
expendilures

C3lber (imancing Sources (usesh

Transbers hetween fends
Bond procecds

Excess (deliciwmey) of revenues
aned flier saurces over
expened ure and other uses

Fund balances ddeficit ),
July |, 2003, = eestated

Fund balances (deficit),
June 30, 2004

CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS

Supplementasy Information

Nom Major Governmemnital Funds

Capital Project Funcds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Chonges in Fund Balances (Continoed )

For the Year Ended June 31, 2004

Woest End HDCEPA HDC
Devalies Pivrce Cement Heimb Incubuatar Ohak Bluff Sea
Elementary Mlill Park Lining Ph2 Agreement Project Ferry Terminal Lah
8 S g 5 b3 5 4
50,552 129,043 Y3495 a2
321465
321 AR% 50,552 129 063 33495 57373
i 121 465) { S0.553) (12963 (313495 { 57273
{ 121 .465) | S552) [ 129063 { 3E31.495) { 57218
S 121 485 §  s055h b lE‘?EHh_.'L;I Y S 313.495) 5 &l 57 1?3?

See accompanying independent auditors” repoet
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Raveimes.
Fuderal and state grants
Investinent inoome
Oiher

Tolal reveriees

Eapenditure:
Gieneral governmen
Public sality
Public works
Educzition
Community and aeonamic development
Munictpal airpor
Cullure and recrealion

Tolal expediures

Excess (detigicney) of revenue over
expendaures

Oither Ninancing sources [usesy;

Translirs hetween funds
Boad procecds

Excess (deliciency ) of revenues
and other sources over
expendiiure and other uses

Fumd halances {delicit ).
July 1, JHIR, o6 vestated

Fund belances {delicit),
June 31, 244

CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Supplementary Informagion
Men Major Governmmedital Funds

Capital Project Fungds

Combining Statement of Revenucs, Expenditunes and Chimges in Fund Baknces (Continuod |

Fosr the Year Ended June 30, 2004

EPA Phase 2 Wastewater AP 27
Widnerability Regional-Alrspace Parking D Taxiway B
Assem Study Cnrage Treatiment Construction Subtatal
5 42400 5 5 5 5 2313309 5 3307862
559 424 B.GEE
a0 32,358 440,801
R RRITNY] 9,345 429 2, 345667 3757651
5,140
U200 3734380
B TR, A5
2. 7a0 189
240570 2408770
451 598 505,440
4 0 443 5498 2405 70 |9 K 275
( aE4.245) 424 { 1, 103} (15331622
63,720 30,547
1,749,975 1,751 285
1,265,726 424 3617 [ E3; 5293890}
_ na NEERECNE) L1061 3500 [ HiA11 661
£ § G99 S 921463) 5 11,490 5 7.607 & 54.161 052

See accompanying independent auditons” report
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS

Supplkementzry Information

Non Major Governmental Funds

Permanent Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances (Continued)

Revenues:

Federal and statle grants
Investment income
Chher excise

Fires and panaltres
Charges for services
Oithaz

Totl revenues

Fxpomditures;

Cieneral govemment
Publie safely
Public works
Healih and human services
Education
Community and economie develppment
humicipal airpot
Cultare and recreation
Dbt service

Principal

Imtuorest

Totab expenditures

Excess (deficiency] of revenue
et expendilures

Other financing sounces {uses):
Transfers hetween funds
Band proceeds

Excess (defliciency) of revienuss
and ciher sourees aver
expenditures and other uses

Furd Badance (defica),
Julby [22003, restated

Fund balance (detiont),
June 30, 20004

Year Ended June 30, 2004

SNonexpendable
Trusis

5
E021.950

193407

1,127 357

| S8

142673
445

14,564

181 h50

—_—adey

935 M1

e

(280000

BES,T0T

.50 824

b 1 el e

AT LT A R T

Expendable
Trusts

4
31963
2478
34441
1,435
1,435
33006
1,202
14,108
247091
5 2R1.3010

e

Tuotsl
Mon Major
Covernmental
Subtotal Funds
5 S 45411988
1053.913 1,079,549
15,865
4,140
| 645,200
107 885 4420085
1161798 52:596 757
[IRELETS 438,937
3,757 869
G.718,54)
1675 B8 350
1445 35.087.8%
2036797
3,252,684
TR L. ET4,58)
[L TR
22 306
[33118S O 507 965
068 713 (L3911 208
[ M4E798) { 197,174
1,751,284
9815 [ 12.357.,002)
7752817 [ 257137585
5 Bd472812 SC 38130 847

e T

See accompanying independent auditors” report
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Supplementary Information
Private Purpose Trust Funds
Coamhbining Balasee Sheet

Jume 30, 2004

Flwyn Taylor
Campbell Sehonl Tartal
Assets
Cash and shoa-term investments 510 228) 5 5221 i 4,953
Investments 160,163 15, 803
Tl asses 5 G475 5 5,251 E 15,046
Liakilities
Accounls payahle 3 § 2210 5 2210
Taotal Habilities 2210 2210
Mot Assets
Held in trust for pension benefils
and other purposes i G875 5 3011 5 12,88

See accompitiving independent auditors” repont
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Additions:
Investment imceme
Drividends and mierest

Met appreciation m fair value
of ifvesiments

Total additions

Deductions:

Adimiinistration

Tobl deductons

Changes n et asscts

et assets at beginning of yrar

Mt assets ot end of year

CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS

Combining Statement of Changes in Fidusiary MNet Assets

Elwymn G
Camphell

% el

1,765

1944

—_— —

Ser accompanying independent duditors” repon

Suppkementary lnfomation

Private Purpose Trust Funds

Jume 341, 2004
Tavior
Sehood
5 1082
1, 023
4
2210
2210

_— e

{ 2151}

5162

g 3011

Taotal

£ 1261

T42

2403

—_— =

1492
2492
459)
13,375

b 12886

_

k=1 TR 1



CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS

Supplkmentany Infirmation

Special Revenue Funds - Community Develepren

Combining Balance S

June 10, 2004

Conumunity
Develapment Portuguese Hausing
Block Nafional Culture HOME Sevemy
Crant HILFE Park {enter Frogram Ine, HAND, Inc. Tl
ASSETS
Cash b 25 B4l 4 td, 502 4 15,04 & 1250y § T 5 §  JeiERd $ 150,013
Fegleral and state recevables 5,747,531 468 00 TA34074 5579606
Lians receiyahle | BT 502 10,876,037 12573530
Hecervabile, olher 21,506 261 22166
e from ether funds 5,500 5,900
Land inseniony ) 246,918
Toial assels 5 7492 780 5 fud 5000 Y 15,990 § 480,750 £ 2 h0538| 5§  Ma0|R § 11265821 § 22178142
LIABILITIES AND FUND ECUITIES (DEFLCITS)

Liatiliies:

Warrants pavable § 332388 5 % 5 i & 5 £ 3323y

Accounls paable and

avcrued cxpaises RE.D24 [ 5458 17,709 121,184

R etaimagee payable 11,6360 11636

[heferred 1evenue 7 A6 940 ARb.750 2334074 10,8 T, 037 21638010

D fronn other Tunds 5900 f04 0 10,441

Other liabilities 331,958 264 784 28142
Testal liahilitics T RER 33,054 486,750 30150 103,883 746 21969 692
Fund Balance

Linreserved, undisignated L 412.108) 30,544 15,90 i 44 569} 246,918 172075 2018 450
Total lahilities and fund baance 4. 7492 TR0 5 fd, 502 5 E.‘-@ 5 4&6,750 % LADSSE] §  LBIE 511 Zﬁ‘r!?ﬂl i EI,I'.‘E!HE

See pocompinying independent auditoes report
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Suppkamemary Indormation
Speoial Revenue Funds « Community Development
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expendituees and Changes in Fund Balance

Year Ended June M, 2004

Communily
Do elopment Partugucse Housing
Block Mational Culture HOME Seventy
Grant i Park Ceater _ Progoam —lne. HAND, Ine. — Total
Havenues
Fraderal anid stse grant income L 4007 07H 5 5 A1 5 11,2511 5 4], 040 LY b3 194,441 5 A71L70%
Interesi ineome 5431 56 25382 0,571
Utlher indome 0681 4111 108,346 333,253 | 155,341
Tivtiel fevenue 4,022 092 4,367 4000 I1;250 |, 170286 550076 5,708 071
s pemid ilures
Commuonity and cconomic
developrment THIG HAG ENE] 24 010 11,250 | 5HA Sak O7L.5ThH 5132278
Cyhure and tecreation 248,000 248,000
Health and hunim services 319726 319,726
Public warks 171 Ga4 T71 644
Fotal cxpunditures 4,173 204 fr 160 24010 11250 I585 548 HT1LETH H.47] 648
Exeess deliciency) of revenues
pveer ex penditures {15003 { (IS 15,5900 | 415202 E21, 500 673,577}
Oiher financing sources (Uses)k
Transfers between funds — e —
Excess detioemey ) of revenues
and vther sources pver
eapendituns and other uses [ R R T I e i 1.693) 15,5400 { 415,262} [ 121500 { BI3.5TT)
Fund Batance (deficil), )
July 1020073, restated { 260L9%96) 32,237 370 293 246,918 491 575 2027
Fund halance {deflicit),
June 30, 214 8 412008 b 30,544 % 15 95 i & 44 960y £ 246018 § 372075 5 208450

See accompanying independent auditoes” report
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ASSETS
Cash and investmenis
Insurance premism deposil
e from other funds

Toal asscts

CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Suppkmentary Informaticn
Proprietiry Funds - Intemitl Service Funds
Combining Balance Shest

June 30, 2004

LIABILITIES AND RETAINED EARNINGS {DEFICITS}

Laabilatacs.

Warmanls payable

Accounts pavable and sccrued gxpenses

Clims FBNRE
Due o other funds
Total liabilities

Ketained camings

Toral liabilities and retained camings

Group
Insurance Purchasing

Claims Department Tolals
S 34670220 3 | 39,284 5 3809504
3,620 300 3620, 30H)
et 15 ET8
§ 7201380 3 134 302 & 1430 68T
5 2470170 5 12 748 L2428
333 9 342
2541 060 2,545,060
L4l 1,741
FA113,304 22,751 5,056,061
22TROTL | 16,545 1354621
£ 1291380 5 13%.302 & TAI0LEZ

See accompanying independent auditors™ repoit
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Supplementary Informatron
Proprictary Funds - Intemal Service Funds
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Retained Earnings

For the Year Ended June 30, 2004

Group
Insurance Purchasing
Claiims Department Torals
Revenues
Other miscellaneous revenue 5 % 338,668 3 338668
Cithver restricted Tevenue TR ] 30500929
Tutal opetating revense 30,59 920 1386608 31,329.8587
Expenses:

Proemums LHM kAL 584 JihAGh GRS

Contract services 25, B95 28595

Supplics 2] 648 291 648

Tomal aperating expenses 10895 479 4] Han 31187127
Cipertm g o {loss) R 47020 142,470
Man operating incomeExpenses;

Invesiment ineomes 260 2640
Mt imeome 530 47020 142,730
Fuemd balance July | 2003, restated 2. 182366 6. 525 2.25] 891
Fund halnnce Junme 30, 2004 %TE,DT& 5 16,545 5 25944210

Seeaccompanying independont auditors " repor
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Weal spare
214
i1l
02
RN
M
| MakiL)
(RFIEH
| L7
| ket
[RIRH]
(RFLH
(RIS
[RILEE
[RERER
T4%0
(R
|tk
| b atead

ostal Real Estate

Personil Propaty:

Tl
Jonkd
2002
200
RN
R
(R
L&ty
194
1945
(Rt
(RE
19492
19491
| LI
(RL

Twtal Personal Property

Tl Propeaty Taxes

CITY OF NEW BERFORD, MASSACHUSETTS

Supplementiy Infonm o

General Fund

Schedule of Property Tax and Motor Vehicle Exeise Tax Receiviblos

Year Endiad June 30, 20404

Teainning Ending
Balance Tremsurer's Transfer Refunds Balance
DB Commitments Collections Adljustments Abatements o Tax Title & Hefand Pay 06/ 30:04
% T RdATRATI 562250625 & 5,118 kY T56.555) 5 5 5 1067173
22620 { REH, 3 1,1l | T.128) {1506, 709 J1.822 { AT
3TE.5RY | 1959 2,168 371 4998
| 15,54 { 513 { ALY
[ 107 i 402 [ 12,700
i 24,5141 { 193) [ 24 591
RERNR 0 20h 4411 } [0, TH2) [ RN
i 1.218) 1.218
i 682) BED
{ Lo 675} T T
{ 5,348, S304
{ 24659 264
P et 16,117
i 3671 13671
| b7 MR 17 K8
1 5910 SU16
| 527) s
{ 2.8yl { 4.15%) [ 1056}
2ASH 124 fd B0 471 LAII0%a1h 51,931 { TN 11,500 T4 Bih, | K 2,174 251
1636007 [ ASTT.AGH) { 5.240) 53,263
&6 [ 32178y Fa 4 3T 17.19% § 346
AR { .24 | I { 2,168] 2973 51,005
54, IR { QREL | 2,201} 42624
41,5604 { TH2H | ] [ 2000 B4z
16,559 { 4,124) { 1 i nlly 11827
27 834 | 4,683) { 6371 { 2372} 20,042
| 1,345 i 3250 { 121 { 2.258) 5865
13,443 | 2.657) { 5) { 2002 8,009
g [ A5R6) 4 238} 1 1182 1035
1.296 | 1,738 | 1151 { g 1404
T.284 i 1.5%0) | 44 { Q52 2,932
4 { b TES) I i 917} 1.408
A HR1E 1 1,364 2,151 | 1,044 4,761
2,201 i 1,209 3.20% { 1.055) 1244
10462 | 1,357 i 1496 i 13 LTI
J20. 4714 JA36,007 [ 3667 52T 3327 | 27,568 20,071 297 BRG
2. TRE a0 HH OIS ATH { fifi 776 5446) 55258 { 805,293 11506, 709 1063, 361 2AGH 50
See accompamying independeant auditers’ repon
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CITY OF NEW BERFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Supplementiny ldonmation
General Fund
Schedule of Propeny Tax and Molor Vehacls Excise Tux Ricenables {Contimual j

Yo Ended June 30, 2004

Beginning Ending
Balance Treasurer's Transfer Hefunds Balance
UTARTNK Commitments Collections Adjustments Abatements 1o Tax Title & Refund Puy _ DAANAE
Maorer Vehiele:
RITHES 52087490 {4,307, 7 25282 {122,990 24 666 H25,044
2 b2 ARS LA 000 (R I B R R 1014 { 29, 1T i THAEN) 44 815 263,464
22 ELEN T A5.452 | i52.327) i 14, 1%46) | 15498 2095 4t 795
2l |24 B8 T i 32,7248} 1 Laetl) I THR) 3 HE.540
201 il ARG ( 121903 { | 360 { 75 57,085
1949 52,710 { 6,315 | 28] { 1THY 46,226
| UMK Liis 011 2 { AA64) { el BTHY { 19 17.551
| L7 45559 { 20020 { T.028) 35,2009
| ki 15 550 | k58] { 132y 3io2
(R LR T 220 | THR) { 35 35,396
[ LG | TURY [ 5] 3T,
(ML 53,144 { 1,199 ) G ) 58921
UL 64 473 i 1,342} i 6l H1,070
14 KT 680G { 2,133 { 47} { (%3] LA
L4 AL { 2,573 £5 |08, 743
(LR 146,544 { 2,894 i 21 143,420
Rt |62 385 | 2,548 327 L&) 164
Tonil Maotor Vehicle 2080610 b, 230702 [ SmAl4ahT) { ANl [ 2L1A54) 12349 2227001
Tl Propeny and
Maor Weluele '5 4. 860 21 5 T4 B35 1RO 5 7246370 I_.}:l 5 IR 81} 81006 A5 S 1A T £ 172,710 5 A60A 151

See accompanying independent auditors” repon
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Supplementary [nformation
General Fund
Staternent of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Year Ended June 30, 2004

Bevenues:
Tax collections net of relunds;

Real estate and personal property taxes
Motor vehicle excise

Tax liens and foreclosures

Oither excise callections

Penalties and imterest

Payments in lieu of taxes

Charges for services:

Water and sewer

Trash

Cemeteries

Parking

Log

Other

Departmental
Licenses and permits
Fines and forfeitures
Special assessments
Famings on mvestments
Other

Governmental revenue:
Federal
Srate

Other

Total revenues

See accompanying independent auditors’ repart

5 a6, 18,307
5,858,839

L 144,771
11,845
1087563
404,049

6,200,699
10,433
252,015
838,008
404,924

| 12,449
11,927 722
1,294,457
176,721
3,983
239,325
402416

103,482
147921371

_—
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS

Supplementary [nformation

General Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances {Continued)

Year Ended June 30, 2004

Expenditures:

General government
Public safety:
Police
Fire
EMS
[nspector of butldings
Other
Public works and facilitics:
Water, sewer and sanifation operations
Highways and streets
Education:
School department
Other
Human services
Culture and recreation
Diebl service
Insurance and pension
Other
Intergovernmental expenditures

Total Expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures
Other financing sources and (uses):
Transfer from tailings
Transfer from overlay reserve
Operating transfers im
Orperating transfers out
Total cther financing sources and {uses)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources over expendimures and other uses

Fund balance (deficit) at beginning of year, restated

Fund balance {deficit) at end of year

Sec accompanying independent auditors” report

15,816,567

19,116,075
13,034 569
2,110,413
LO6RATT

40,500

8,22%,630
1,562,682

114,258 461
2,736,993
2.038,573
2,551,685
8,589,879

39965 428
390,853
[.513.412

e

233,023,504

e e

1489875

165.000
600,000
735,683

{ 132.240%

335441

—_— e

2:87R 316

17,639,754

e A e
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Landfill Cledure Bonds
Gengral Public Improvement
Woater Band

Gieneril Public Improvemant
Sewer Bonds

Sewer Bonds

General Public Improvement
Federal Loun 1996 Sanes &
Federal Loan 1598 Senics A
Federal Loan 2000 Saies 6
Landtill and Water

Maddle Schoal, Publbc lmp
Federnl Loan 2003 Semes &
Federal Loan 2003 Pool 9

HUD 108 2003 -A

Outstanding
Balance
G004

CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Supplementary [nformation
General Long-Term Debt Account Group
Schedule of Long-Term Debt Maluritics

Ten Years Endad June 30

L 915000
2,760,000
3.605.000
2 A5 0400
& DD
2 535000
T.45000

13,650,140
113,264,000
5,324.608
3125000
42,595 000
T4.167
1,533.354

|, 7 bl 000

§ MaeTT 29

2005 206 2007
§  RS0000 5 65,000 5

00000 3 QKD 255,000
F60 000 275,000 235 000
280,000 245000 245000
2,00 230,005 245 000
135000 140,000 [EERH
770000 T70.000 710,000
1,705,000 1,645 000 1370000
2.585,004 2,755,000 2,540,000
124055 127,267 | 30,894
| &8, 000 145,004 L& S 000
1,725,040 1,795,000 | BT0,000
30,103 31548 32326
Bo 563 6,834 68,1746
40,000 40,000 S0.000
S O0dh 21 5 BETOGA0 5 RTITL A%

St accompanying independent auditors” report

2004

295,000
250,000
345,000
264,000
1500040
T70,000
1,450,000
3,135,000
135,129
185000
|.955.000
33452
69,528

G1,000

_———

$_9063,109

2009

295,060
2h00U
245,000
270,000
160,000
775000

b 390000
3345000
139,405
85,000
2035000
14617
0e.904

Q0000

————

é 9,204 075

a4
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Landfill Closure Bonds

General Publc lmprovement

Woister Hond

Goneral Public Improvement

Siewer Bonds

Sewer Bomls

General Puble Improvement

Federal Loan |99 Sanes A

Federal Loan 1998 Series A

Federal Loan 20 Sertes 6

Laradfall and Water

shiddle Schonl, Publ Tmp
Fediral Loan 2007 Seres 8
Federal Loan 20403 Pool &

AU D 108 20034

CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Suppkmenlary Information
General Long-Term Debt Account Group
Schedule of Long-Term Debt Maturities {Continued)

Ten Years Ended June 30

] 2001 12 bR 2014
5 g b3 5 5

255 000 255,000 255,000 255,000 255,000
R0.000 205,000 30000 130,000 RE0,000
240,000 240,000 240,000 FOO00 190000
285,000 304000 320,000 i 000 36000
170,00 175000 | 85,000 195,006 13,000
Fa0 000 390 000 FG0.000 350,000 390,000
|, 285000 1163, 000 1 035000 BS0,000 730,
3565000 5205000 40045 (00 4,290,000 4,710,000
[44, 08 148,850 153,000 1 &0.0IH 165,00
185,000 LES OO 185.000 FR5.000 185,000
2,125,000 222,000 2,315,000 T 420,000 25300040
15,534 RLEE 37505 13,363 a0
0651 71,594 T 74,059 77,2541
03000 |05 000 1115000 1415 00 1005, 000
S 930,193 5 0394424 £ 0,690,300 59963127 510291 8§97

Lee accompanying independimt auditors” repon
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